/—s:\ AGENDA
MERIDIAN ? CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
W N

S ¢ S H 1 Pa¥ ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING
October 9,2019 6:30 pm

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER*

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF MINUTES
A. Wednesday, September 18, 2019

N

4, COMMUNICATIONS
A. Bear Lake Homeowners Association RE: ZBA #19-09-18-4

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
6. NEW BUSINESS

A.ZBA CASE NO. 19-10-09-1 (Schoen & Schneider), 6102 Columbia Street, Haslett, MI,

48840

LOCATION: 6102 Columbia Street

PARCEL ID: 03-476-001

ZONING DISTRICT: RB (Single Family-High Density), Lake Lansing Overlay

The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-442(f)(9)(a), Maximum driveway coverage. A driveway shall not occupy
more than 50 percent of the total area of the front yard for residential lots created prior
to October 5, 1960, and are less than 65 feet in width at the street line.

The variance request is to install a driveway which exceeds the maximum allowed coverage
of the front yard at 6102 Columbia Street.

B. ZBA CASE NO. 19-10-09-2 (O’Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC), 233 S. Paterson,

Springfield, MO, 65802

DESCRIPTION: 2703 Grand River Avenue
TAX PARCEL: 20-203-012

ZONING DISTRICT: C-2 (Commercial)

The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:

Variance requests may be subject to change or alteration upon review of request during preparation of the staff memorandum. Therefore, Sections of
the Code of Ordinances are subject to change. Changes will be noted during public hearing meeting.

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864 Township Hall

s . . . . A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. - )

meridian.mi.us



/—s:\ AGENDA
MERIDIAN ? CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
oW 7

i NS HI P&t ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING
~— October 9, 2019 6:30 pm

e Section 86-441(e)(6), Access management standards. Based on the posted speed limit
along the public street segment, access points shall have a minimum of 350 feet of
spacing provided from other access points along the same side of the street, measured
centerline to centerline.

e Section 86-441(e)(8), Access management standards. Based on the posted speed limit
along the public street segment, access points shall be aligned with driveways on the
opposite side of the street or offset 630 feet, measured centerline to centerline. The
Director of Community Planning and Development may reduce this to not less than 150
feet where the offsets are aligned to not create left-turn conflicts.

e Section 86-441(e)(9), Access management standards. The minimum required driveway
spacing from the intersection of Grand River Avenue and a Collector or Local street is
200 feet, measured pavement edge to pavement edge.

e Section 86-755, Schedule of requirements for parking space. Parking space shall be
provided in accordance with the design standards of this chapter and according to this
schedule: for commercial centers having a gross floor area (GFA) less than 25,000
square feet, 5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (minimum) to 5.5 spaces per 1,000 square
feet (maximum).

The variance requests are to construct a driveway that would not meet the setback from an
existing driveway along the same side of the street, the required offset from an existing
driveway on the opposite side of the street, and the setback from a street intersection. A
variance to construct a parking lot without the required number of parking spaces is also
requested. The subject site is located at 2703 Grand River Avenue.

7. OTHER BUSINESS

8. PUBLIC REMARKS

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
10. ADJOURNMENT

Variance requests may be subject to change or alteration upon review of request during preparation of the staff memorandum. Therefore, Sections of
the Code of Ordinances are subject to change. Changes will be noted during public hearing meeting.

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:
Township Manager Frank L. Walsh, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4258 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864 Township Hall

s . . . . A PRIME COMMUNITY
Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. - )

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT*
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M1 48864-1198

(517) 853-4000

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 6:30 PM

TOWN HALL ROOM

PRESENT: Chair Beauchine, Members, Lane, Mansour, Wisinski

ABSENT: Member Field-Foster

STAFF: Director of Community Planning and Development Mark Kieselbach, Assistant

Planner Justin Quagliata

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chair Beauchine called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
MEMBER LANE MOVED TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS WRITTEN.

SECONDED BY MEMBER MANSOUR.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL & RATIFICATION OF MINUTES
Wednesday, July 24, 2019.

MEMBER MANSOUR MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM WEDNESDAY, JULY 24,
20109.

SECONDED BY MEMBER WISINSKI.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

4. COMMUNNICATIONS
None.

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None.

6. NEW BUSINESS
A. ZBA CASENO 19-09-18-1 (Peterson), 2705 Linden Street, East Lansing, MI, 48823

LOCATION: 2705 Linden Street
PARCEL ID: 17-253-002
ZONING DISTRICT: RA (Single Family-Medium Density)

The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-373(e)(5)(a), Minimum yard dimensions. Front yards. In accordance with the
setback requirements of Section 86-367 for the type of street upon which the lot fronts.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 2

e Section 86-373(e)(5)(b), Minimum yard dimensions. Side yards: 10 feet.

The variance requests are to construct an attached garage that would project 2.7 feet into the
side yard setback and 2.3 feet into the front yard setback at 2705 Linden Street.

Assistant Planner Quagliata outlined the case for discussion. He noted the previous owner
obtained a building permit in 2016 to demolish an existing garage and construct a carport. The
carport was not constructed and the building permit had expired.

Chair Beauchine asked the applicant or the applicant’s representative if they would like to
address the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA).

Mr. Barry Peterson, the applicant, 2705 Linden Street, East Lansing, stated the existing stairs to
the house extended approximately four feet from the side of the house. The garage needed to be
wide enough to accommodate two cars. He noted there was a downward slope in elevation
south of the concrete slab that had been poured for the carport which prohibited constructing
the proposed garage off the back of the house.

Chair Beauchine opened the floor for public remarks.
Michael Breen, 2517 Linden Drive, East Lansing, spoke in support of the requested variances.
Chair Beauchine closed the floor for public remarks.

Member Mansour read review criteria one from Section 86-221 of the Code of Ordinances which
states unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district. She stated the house was
purchased without a garage and an existing concrete slab installed for a carport that was never
constructed was unique.

Member Mansour read review criteria two which states these special circumstances are not self-
created. She stated this criteria had been met.

Member Mansour read review criteria three which states strict interpretation and enforcement
of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties. She stated
the property currently did not have a garage.

Member Mansour read review criteria four which states that the alleged practical difficulties
which will result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent the owner
from using the property for a permitted purpose. She stated adding to an existing garage would
be excessive but the property currently did not have a garage which created practical difficulties.

Member Mansour read review criteria five which states granting the variance is the minimum
action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner which is not contrary
to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public
safety, and provide substantial justice. She noted the proposed encroachment into the front and
side yard setbacks was minimal.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 3

Member Mansour read review criteria six which states granting the variance will not adversely
affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property. She stated a
neighbor spoke in support of the requested variances.

Member Mansour read review criteria seven which states the conditions pertaining to the land
or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the formulation of a general
regulation for such conditions practicable. She stated this criteria had been met.

Member Mansour read review criteria eight which states granting the variance will be generally
consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter. She stated this
criteria had been met.

Chair Beauchine stated the current owners’ personal circumstances could not be considered
because variances stay with the property which make it difficult to meet review criteria four. He
noted the applicant could construct a single car garage with the existing stairs. His concern was
there were variances requested from both the front and side yard setbacks.

Member Wisinski asked staff if the proposed garage would be the same size as the previous
garage removed in 2011.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the proposed garage would be larger than the garage
removed in 2011. He added the previous garage met the 10 foot setback from the side lot line
and the 25 foot front yard setback.

Member Mansour asked staff if the requested variances were needed to ensure car doors could
open. She also asked if the existing stairs were constructed by the previous owner.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the stairs were existing when the prior owner removed the
garage.

Mr. Peterson stated the variances were needed so car doors could be opened due to the width of
the existing stairs.

Member Mansour asked the applicant if they considered replacing or reconfiguring the stairs.

Mr. Peterson stated moving the stairs back would place the entrance to the house in the
bathroom and shortening the stairs was not feasible because they were concrete.

Member Lane stated the existing stairs were unique and to construct a two car garage and
accommodate the stairs would require the variances. He noted most new houses built included
two car garages and most of the houses in the neighborhood had two car garages. He stated not
allowing a two car garage would be a practicable difficulty.

Chair Beauchine stated if the proposed garage could be moved back to match the original front
facade of the house then it could be considered the minimum action necessary.

Member Lane asked the applicant their reasoning for extending the garage into the front yard
setback.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 4

Mr. Peterson stated because of the location of the stairs a car door would not be able to be
opened inside the garage.

Member Lane asked the applicant if the slope of the concrete slab was south the proposed
garage.

Mr. Peterson responded yes and to move the proposed garage back would require supporting
and pouring additional concrete.

MEMBER MANSOUR MOVED TO APPROVE BOTH VARIANCES.
SECONDED BY MEMBER WISINSKI.

Member Wisinski stated the stairs were problematic and the applicant had considered
alternative options.

Member Mansour stated the applicant had requested the minimum variances necessary.
ROLL CALL TO VOTE: YES: Members Mansour, Wisinski, Lane, Chair Beauchine
NO:

Motion carried unanimously.

B. ZBA CASE NO. 19-09-18-4 (Frankovich), 6814 Kingdon Avenue, Holt, MI, 48842

LOCATION: 2552 Bruin Drive
PARCEL ID: 17-228-004
ZONING DISTRICT: RA (Single Family-Medium Density)

The applicant is requesting a variance from the following section of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-564(b)(2), Unenclosed porches. Roofed or unroofed porches may project into
a required side or rear yard a distance not to exceed eight feet, provided: the porch shall
not be closer than eight feet at any point to any side or rear lot line.

e Section 86-564(e), Fire escapes, outside stairways, and balconies. Fire escapes, outside
stairways, and balconies, if of open construction, may project into the yard up to a
maximum of five feet.

The variance requests are to construct a deck and outdoor stairway which would encroach into
the required setback from the side lot line at 2552 Bruin Drive.

Assistant Planner Quagliata outlined the case for discussion. He noted the property was part of
the Wildwood Lakes Planned Unit Development and setbacks were established by the Township
Board. The previous decks had not received building permits. The decks were deemed unsafe
by the Township Building Inspector and required to be removed. He also stated the existing
stairway was nonconforming and built two feet onto the adjacent property.

Chair Beauchine asked the applicant or the applicant’s representative if they would like to
address the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA).



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 5

Ms. Lee Reiman, the property owner, 2552 Bruin Drive, East Lansing, stated the request was to
reconstruct the deck in the side yard to the width of the previous deck that had been removed.
Unlike the previous deck the new deck would extend south toward the driveway for a ramp to
the side door of the garage. She stated the configuration of lots in the Bear Lake subdivision was
unique.

Chair Beauchine opened the floor for public remarks and seeing none closed public remarks.

Chair Beauchine stated the ZBA had considered variance requests for other properties in the
Bear Lake subdivision. He noted the setbacks in the subdivision and the Wildwood Lakes
Planned Unit Development were unique. Chair Beauchine asked staff if an addition to the house
could be built up to the property line.

Assistant Planner Quagliata noted an addition to the house could be built up to the lot line
provided there was 20 feet between buildings. He stated side yards in the Bear Lake subdivision
were established at the time of construction on each lot. The required side yard for the subject
property on the east side was 8.4 feet. An encroachment of a deck into the side yard was not
permitted without a variance.

Chair Beauchine asked staff what the distance was between the house on the subject property
and the house on the lot to the east.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the distance between buildings was approximately 34 feet.

Member Mansour asked staff if the proposed outdoor stairway could be constructed without a
variance if the stairway projected five feet from the house.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated yes an outside stairway may project into the side yard up to a
maximum of five feet.

Chair Beauchine asked staff if the proposed outdoor stairway would be the only means of access
to the rear yard.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the rear yard could be accessed from the west side of the. He
also noted access to the rear yard was provided from the walkout basement and the deck at the
northeast corner of the house.

Member Mansour questioned if the proposed deck and outdoor stairway were necessary and if
not allowing those structures would result in practical difficulties. She stated there was access to

the rear yard and did not believe the proposed outdoor stairway was necessary.

Chair Beauchine stated relocating the outdoor stairway to be adjacent to the house may block a
window on the east side of the house.

Chair Beauchine asked staff if a five foot addition could be built on the east side of the house.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated an addition to the house could be built up to the lot line if 20
feet was provided from the structure on the adjacent property.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 6

Member Lane stated the setbacks for the Bear Lake subdivision were a unique circumstance
which could satisfy review criteria one. He stated the setbacks were not self-created which
could satisfy review criteria two.

Member Lane stated review criteria three and four had not been met. Not granting the variances
would not result in practical difficulties or unreasonably prevent the applicant from using the
property for the permitted purpose.

Ms. Reiman stated the door on the east side of the house provided access to the garage and the
reason for requesting a longer deck was to provide a ramp to the door from the south.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the applicant did plan to construct a ramp to the front door to
provide barrier free access to the house.

Member Lane stated the house had existing points of ingress and egress and did not believe the
proposed deck was necessary. He noted the inability to build the deck was not a practical
difficulty.

Ms. Reiman stated while the house had multiple points of access the proposed deck in the side
yard would provide barrier free access from the rear yard to the front yard.

Member Mansour stated the Board used the eight review criteria found in Section 86-221 of the
Code of Ordinances which did not allow the Board to consider the applicant’s personal
circumstances. She stated all eight review criteria must be met in order to grant a variance. She
added the request was not the minimum action necessary and believed there were alternatives
to what was proposed by the applicant.

Member Lane stated there were ways to provide barrier free access to the house in compliance
with the zoning ordinance. He noted the Board’s purview was to consider if the request met the
eight review criteria in the zoning ordinance.

MEMBER LANE MOVED TO DENY THE VARIANCE REQUESTS BASED ON FAILURE TO MEET
REVIEW CRITERIA THREE AND REVIEW CRITERIA FOUR.

SECONDED BY MEMBER MANSOUR.
ROLL CALL TO VOTE: YES: Members Lane, Mansour, Wisinski, Chair Beauchine
NO:

Motion carried unanimously.

C. ZBA CASE NO. 19-09-18-3 (Woodward Way LP), 500 S. Front Street, Columbus, OH,
43215

DESCRIPTION: East of Sirhal Drive, west of Greencliff Drive
TAX PARCEL: 17-377-031
ZONING DISTRICT: RC (Multiple Family)

The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 7

e Section 86-376(g)(7)(iii), Other yard dimensions. No single building or connected
building may exceed 200 feet in any one dimension. All buildings shall be so arranged as
to permit emergency vehicle access, by some practical means, to all sides.

e Section 86-376(g)(9)(e), Parking requirements. Every multiple-family structure shall
provide motor vehicle parking facilities which shall provide a minimum of 200 square
feet in area for each vehicle parking space, each space shall be definitely designated and
reserved for parking purposes, and each space shall be accessible separately from a
drive.

The variance requests are to exceed the maximum building dimension by 37 feet in length for
two buildings and construct 98 residential parking spaces 20 square feet less than the required
size on a currently undeveloped parcel identified by Parcel Number 17-377-031.

Assistant Planner Quagliata outlined the case for discussion. He noted the Township Fire
Inspector reviewed the site plan and did not have an issue with the length of the buildings.

Chair Beauchine asked the applicant or the applicant’s representative if they would like to
address the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA).

Mr. Frank Fugate, the applicant’s representative, 500 S. Front Street, Columbus, Ohio, stated the
site was designed to meet all building and parking area setbacks. He noted the site plan
allocated area for parking expansion.

Chair Beauchine opened the floor for public remarks and seeing none closed public remarks.

Chair Beauchine asked staff the origin of the 200 foot maximum building dimension in the
multiple family design standards.

Director Kieselbach stated the maximum 200 foot dimension was based on a provision of the
Fire Code and how emergency responders have to lay hoses in the event of a fire. He noted the
reason the Township Fire Inspector approved the length of the buildings was because other
methods of fire suppression would be required.

Member Lane stated the project was before the Planning Commission for special use permits
which were approved and mentioned the applicant satisfied the concerns of the Planning
Commission by revising the site design and reducing the number of variances from 10 to two.
He stated the multiple family land uses surrounding the subject site along with its location and
former use of the property as a mobile home park created unique circumstances.

Member Mansour stated requiring other methods of fire protection was important if the Board
was to grant the 37 foot variance from the maximum building dimension.

Member Wisinski stated she supported the project since the applicant revised the site plan to
meet zoning ordinance requirements. She stated the required supplemental fire protection
helped her support the variance from the maximum building dimension.

Member Lane asked staff why the parking dimensions required for this project were different
than other projects in the Township.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 8

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated except for multiple family developments and planned unit
developments 9 feet by 20 feet was an allowed parking space size. The parking ordinance also
allowed a 10 foot by 18 foot parking space.

Member Mansour asked staff why the required parking space size was different for multiple
family developments.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated the standard had been in the ordinance since the 1970s.

Member Mansour asked staff to reiterate the parking space size requirement for the proposed
development.

Assistant Planner Quagliata stated parking spaces in multiple family developments must be 200
square feet in size, which was 10 feet in width by 20 feet in length.

Director Kieselbach stated the most common parking space size in the Township was 9 feet by
20 feet and multiple family developments were required to provide 200 square foot parking
spaces. He stated the Township Board assigned staff to review the parking standards and
research showed a 180 square foot parking space size was too large. The average size parking
space in most communities was 9 feet by 18 feet (162 square feet).

Chair Beacuhine stated if the Township Board directed staff to review the parking ordinance
then review criteria seven could be met.

MEMBER LANE MOVED TO APPROVE BOTH VARIANCE REQUESTS.
SECONDED BY MEMBER WISINSKI.

Member Lane read review criteria one from Section 86-221 of the Code of Ordinances which
states unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district. He stated the multiple family
land uses surrounding the subject site along with its location and former use of the property as a
mobile home park created unique circumstances.

Member Lane read review criteria two which states these special circumstances are not self-
created. He stated this criteria had been met.

Member Lane read review criteria three which states strict interpretation and enforcement of
the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties. He stated
the applicant had revised the site plan to reduce the number of variances and not granting the
variances would result in practical difficulties because a multiple family development would not
be feasible.

Member Lane read review criteria four which states that the alleged practical difficulties which
will result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent the owner from
using the property for a permitted purpose. He stated the property was zoned RC (Multiple
Family) and not granting the variances would not allow the applicant to use the property for the
permitted purpose.



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - DRAFT PAGE 9

Member Lane read review criteria five which states granting the variance is the minimum action
that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner which is not contrary to the
public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public
safety, and provide substantial justice. He stated the requested variances were the minimum
necessary and the Township Fire Inspector concluded the length of the buildings was not a
safety issue.

Member Lane read review criteria six which states granting the variance will not adversely affect
adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property. He stated the property
had a history of being used for residential purposes so this criteria had been met.

Member Lane read review criteria seven which states the conditions pertaining to the land or
structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the formulation of a general
regulation for such conditions practicable. He stated this criteria had been met.

Member Lane read review criteria eight which states granting the variance will be generally
consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter. He stated this
criteria had been met.

ROLL CALL TO VOTE: YES: Members Lane, Wisinski, Chair Beauchine, Member Mansour
NO:
Motion carried unanimously.

7. OTHER BUSINESS
None.

8. PUBLIC REMARKS
Chair Beauchine opened the floor for public remarks and seeing none closed public remarks.

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
Assistant Planner Quagliata informed the Board the next meeting was on October 9, 2019.

10. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Justin Quagliata
Assistant Planner



0¢ 435
610¢ B aﬂ
Craig Newman, President @@M@j@ a

Bear Lake Homeowners Association
2537 Kodiak Drive
East Lansing, Michigan 48823

September 17, 2019

Meridian Township Zoning Board of Appeals
5151 Marsh Road
Okemos, Michigan 48864

Re: Chris and Lee Reimann Deck Replacement and Property Line Setback

Dear Chair Beauchine and Board Members,

It is a requirement of the Bear Lake Homeowners Association (BLHOA) Restrictive Covenants that
prior to any modification to the "buildings, structures, and other improvements placed on each lot,"
homeowners must present a project plan and a request for review by the BLHOA Board of Directors
seeking permission for the improvement. The BLHOA Board of Directors then carefully review the
plan to insure that it meets covenant guidelines and is a positive for the community. The BLHOA
Board of Directors has the authority to refuse an improvement for any reason, including purely
aesthetic reasons whereby the board believes the improvement is not in harmony with the
neighborhood. As a Board, we take our improvement permission review responsibility very seriously.

Chris and Lee Reimann submitted a deck replacement plan detailed on a lot survey to the BLHOA
Board of Directors on September 6, 2019. The Reimann's also made the board aware that the
existing deck was not in compliance with township setback provisions. It is the Board's belief that
the existing deck has (likely) occupied this space since the home was built in the 1980's.

Upon review by the board and following the request for approval to construct the replacement deck
with modest additions, unanimous BLHOA Board of Directors approval was granted to the Reimanns,
contingent upon approval by the Meridian Township Zoning Board of Appeals

The BLHOA Board of Directors is of the opinion that since the existing deck has occupied essentially
the same space within the lot line setback the new deck will occupy without issue or complaint, the
Board has no issue with the new deck. In fact, the Board is pleased that the homeowners are seeking
to remove the old, decaying structure and improve their living space with new construction. The
Board believes the deck addition is an improvement to the Bear Lake community.

Insofar as the BLHOA is concerned, we welcome the deck improvement the Reimanns' have planned.
We hope that the Meridian Township Zoning Board of Appeals agrees with us.

Respectfully,

Craig Newman, President
Bear Lake Homeowners Association



Meridian Township

)
%

{

[
—  T—
Rd

S

Cornell Rd
5.
X | b
Meridian

~F

Van Atta Rd
S Y2

S

Jolly Rd.
Location Map

N 1.ZBA #19-10-09-1 (Schoen & Schneider)

A 2.7ZBA #19-10-09-2 (O'Reilly Auto Enterprises)



VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT

A variance will be granted, if the following Review Criteria are met:

1.

Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to
other land or structures in the same zoning district.

These special circumstances are not self-created.

Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would
result in practical difficulties.

That the alleged practical difficulties which will result from a failure to grant the variance
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose.

Granting the variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or
structure in a manner which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out
the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the
vicinity of the property.

The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as
to make the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.

Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and
intent of this Chapter.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\ FORMS\VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT-review criteria only.docx



To: Zoning Board of Appeals

From: Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner

Date: October 4, 2019

Re: ZBA Case No. 19-10-09-1 (Schoen and Schneider)

ZBA CASE NO.: 19-10-09-1 (Schoen and Schneider), 6102 Columbia Street, Haslett, MI
48840

LOCATION: 6102 Columbia Street

PARCEL ID: 03-476-001

ZONING DISTRICT:  RB (Single Family-High Density), Lake Lansing Overlay
The applicant is requesting a variance from the following section of the Code of Ordinances:

e Section 86-442(f)(9)(a), Maximum driveway coverage. A driveway shall not occupy more than
50 percent of the total area of the front yard for residential lots created prior to October 5,
1960, and are less than 65 feet in width at the street line.

Kevin Schoen and Linda Schneider, the applicants, are proposing to expand the existing driveway
at 6102 Columbia Street. The approximately 0.121 acre (5,270.76 square feet) subject property is
zoned RB (Single Family-High Density) and located in the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay
District. The subject parcel was platted in 1903 as part of the Lakeview subdivision and contains
40 feet of lot width at the street line of Columbia Street.

The property contains frontage along Lake Street unimproved right-of-way, which means although
the right-of-way for the street exists, the street was not physically constructed. The unimproved
right-of-way is 33 feet in width. The existing two-story house was built in 2005 and is
approximately 2,526 square feet in size. The Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) granted a variance in
2004 (ZBA #04-07-14-1) to allow the new house construction to be setback three feet from the
Lake Street right-of-way line, which is the north lot line of the subject site. Under the same case
the ZBA denied variance requests for the house to be located closer than seven feet to the south lot
line and closer than 25 feet to the Columbia Street right of way line.

The existing gravel driveway is approximately 760 square feet in size and is nonconforming at
approximately 66.7 percent coverage of the front yard, which is approximately 1,140 square feet in
size. For lots less than 65 feet in width the Lake Lansing Residential Overlay District allows a
driveway to cover a maximum 50 percent of the total area of a front yard. The submitted site plan
shows a brick or concrete driveway in the front yard which would cover approximately 74.4
percent of the front yard, or 848 square feet. The applicant is requesting a variance to exceed the
maximum allowed driveway coverage by 24.4 percent. The proposed driveway would be an
increase of coverage over the existing driveway by approximately 7.7 percent or 88 square feet.



ZBA Case No. 19-10-09-1 (Schoen and Schneider)
Zoning Board of Appeals (October 9, 2019)
Page 2

In 2013 the current applicant received approval of the same request for the driveway from the
Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA #13-05-22-3). The project was not completed during the effective
period of the variance and the previous approval expired and is void.

Site History

o The original house was constructed in 1925 and demolished in 2000 (Building Permit #00-
0685).

e On September 13, 2000 the Zoning Board of Appeals approved a variance to allow a single
family house to be built five feet from the south property line, five feet from the north property
line, and 20 feet from the Columbia Street right-of-way line (ZBA #00-09-13-5).

e On April 25, 2001 the Zoning Board of Appeals denied a variance request to construct a house
three feet from the south property line, three feet from the north property line, and 20 feet
from the Columbia Street right-of-way line (ZBA #01-04-25-2).

e On June 12, 2002 the Zoning Board of Appeals denied a variance request to construct a house
3.5 feet from the south property line, five feet from the north property line, and 20 feet from
the Columbia Street right-of-way line (ZBA #02-06-12-1). The variance also included a request
to exceed the maximum lot coverage and driveway coverage standards.

e OnJuly 11, 2002 the Zoning Board of Appeals determined it would not rehear case #02-06-12-
1 because less than one year had passed since the previous request (ZBA #02-07-10-3).

e On July 14, 2004 the Zoning Board of Appeals approved a variance to construct a single family
house to be built three feet from the north lot line (ZBA #04-07-14-1). Under the same case
the Zoning Board of Appeals denied a request for the house to be located closer than seven feet
from the south lot line and closer than 25 feet to the Columbia Street right-of-way line.

e The house was constructed in 2005 under Building Permit #05-0542.

Attachments

1. Variance application dated August 3, 2019 and received by the Township on September 4, 2019.

2. Applicant’s response to review criteria received by the Township on September 4, 2019.

3. Lotsurvey (existing) dated April 25, 2013 and received by the Township on September 30, 2019.

4. Site plan showing proposed driveway expansion dated April 25, 2013 and received by the
Township on September 30, 2019.

5. Site location map.

G:\ COMMUN PLNG & DEV\PLNG\ZBA\2019 ZBA\ZBA 19-10-09\ZBA 19-10-09-1 (Schoen)\ZBA 19-10-09-1 staff report.zbal

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING DIVISION
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864
(517) 853-4560

VARIANCE APPLICATION

A. Applicant /’{E\/ AN S‘Op{ 0/ £ Ly/\JDﬂ SWNE‘HOC‘(,

Address of Applicant__ &£ /67 Celrw BIA 5T

Telephone (Work) __5%/7 =23/ - ) 2/§ Telephone (Home) __ sS4 4 &
Fax Email address:
Interest in property (circle one): Owner [ JTenant [_|Option [ _|Other

B. Site address/flocation @ IO ¢ CeLym BIA 5T

Zoning district Parcel number

C. Nature of request (Please check all that apply):

Request for variance(s) _

[] Request for interpretation of provision(s) of the “Zoning Ordinance” of the Code of
Ordinances

l:l Review an order, requirements, decision, or a determination of a Township official

charged with interpreting or enforcing the provisions of the “Zoning Ordinance” of
the Code of Ordinances

Zoning Ordinance section(s)

D. Required Supporting Material Supporting Material if Applicable
-Property survey -Architectural sketches
-Legal description -Other

-Proof of property ownership or
approval letter from owner
-Site plan to scale
-Written statement, which demonstrates how all the review criteria will be met (See

next page)
N ({crimw S thosw pF-02-1

Signature of Applicant Print Name Date

Fee: $ ’S-O Received by/Date: jKS'h‘VI QuyLM' L/’/ 7

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian Zoning
Board of Appeals, Township staff members and the Township's representatives or
experts the right to enter onto the above described property (or as described in the
attached information) in my (our) absence for the purposes of gathering information
including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. (Note to Applicant(s):
This is optional and will not affect any decision on your application.)

Signature of Applicant(s) Date
Signature of Applicant(s) Date
TAYRE ﬂ[‘\'\
F SEP 04 2018 ;)
J

T



Written Statement of how the review criteria will be met.

We had a previous variance approval to expand the driveway. We did not act on this as at the time the
applicants mother had cancer and we were consumed with that family issues

We wish to put pavers on the driveway, and put a deep gravel base to ensure permeability. Currently it
is unpaved. The property is on Lake Lansing. Most houses in this area have their entire “front yard”
paved with every house using more than 50% of their “front yard” for a driveway. We wish to pave less
than the entire front yard, and will put in landscaping, high quality brick driveway, etc. to make it look
nice.

We purchased the property in October of 2010.. It was built in 2006. The owner at the time requested a
variance to put the house within 3 feet of the public access space that is to the north of the property.
We wish our driveway to be within 3 feet of the public access, and therefore are requesting a variance
of two-feet on the north side of the property.

Our property is adjacent to the public access area where people who do not have lake front property
can use. The public access area is used only rarely. We maintain the public access area, including
landscaping, mowing, trimming bushes, trees, and have filled in the eroded areas around the seawall.
We perform maintenance of the public access at our own expense. Occasionally we have clean up
materials left by renters that use the public access. About half of the houses behind us are rentals. We
have a good relationship with the public access users.

Sincerely,

Kevin Schoen & Lynda Schneider

kevinclarkschoen@gmail.com

517-231-7715 cell



1) Unique Characteristics exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to

other land or structures in the same zoning district.

The property is on the lakefront. The lots in this area are very narrow, but long. Most all properties
on this street on the lake have large “front yard” driveways, taking all or most of the front yards. Our
property is no different. Currently most of the “front yard” is used primarily for parking, on dirt and
gravel. We wish to pave or putin a brick driveway in areas that we already park, and to access the
two car garage. Other properties in the RB area are usually not on the lake and have a different lot
configuration.

Additionally this area is low lying and often a lot of water accumulates on the road and in the
depression in the park during heavy rains. Having a paved parking area would provide less mud and
would decrease erosion. We also would put some drainage gravel, plastic tubing under the driveway
as water tends to come across our driveway during heavy rains.

2) These Special Circumstance are not self-created:

The lot size and configuration were determined prior to us purchasing the house. A special use
permit was previously approved for the prior owner to build the house in the configuration that it is,
and the special permit allowed the north side of the house to be at (3ft) three feet of the property
line, we wish to put the driveway in the configuration in relation to the surround property of house.

3) Strict Interpretation and Enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of the ordinance

would result in practical difficulties:

If strictly interpreted we would have limitations on parking used to get to our garage and to our
garage via a paved areas. Absent paving, would be continued to be parked in the unpaved areas,
disrupting the grass and landscaping.

4) The alleged practical difficulties, which will result from a failure to grant the variance, would

unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose or would

render conformity with such restriction unnecessarily burdensome.

The practical difficulty without granting this application would be limited parking and access, and
access to the garage via paved area, and paved access to our front door.

The property is intended to be used as a residential area, and thus having landscaped and paved
areas where vehicles will be parking, and high use pedestrian areas is consistent with the use of the
property.

AT EI

|
YT

o

‘J-,- SEP 04 2019
t



5) Granting the Variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or
structure in a manner which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out
the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, and provide substantial justice.

The layout of the house (as approved via variance 2006, when built), was found to be in the public
interest. What we want to do is maintain the same layout and distances from the adjacent public
access space, and the neighbors property.

Many of the properties that are on Lake Lansing are in precisely the same configuration as what we
want.

6) Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the
vicinity of the property.

The houses on the lake on Columbia, almost all have small driveways that take up most of the
“front” yard due to the narrowness of the lots. Our house will look consistent with the other
properties in this area.

Most owners on the lake with limited “front yard”, which are usually driveways, significantly
landscape or put in decorative quality driveways. We intend to do the same. We will maintain and
improve the character of the neighborhood.

7) The conditions pertaining to the land are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the

formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.

These conditions that exist cover a number of the house that are on narrow lots that are on Lake
Lansing. The narrow lots on RB areas that are not on Lake Lansing, generally do not apply.

8) Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest, the purposes and intent

of the Zoning Ordinance.

The layout proposed will provide for a consistent look and feel in the area in which our property is in, is
consistent with the other lake properties in this area. Therefore, it is consistent with the public interest.

NITATR ML
SEP 04 2019

WM

H LTI UTe

—

et




SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOT 1, BLOCK 1, LAKEVIEW, SE 1/4 SECTION 3, T4N, R1W, MERIDIAN TWP., INGHAM CO.,
MICHIGAN

G
ﬁe’\ﬁ 5
e\} oo EDGE OF
OPNAL WATER
VP ¢ B am TOP
WP SEAWALL
R\ 852.9
O™ TOP OF
SEAWALL
DEPRESSED 6" 6" WIDE
P —TIMBER SEA .
gg;)WALL WAL Al B
(@]
852.9 ~
/ ) ‘@_—:‘— o
/E~ m()’- i
S e 3
N o . n o
e
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN 1'd i
LINE — ELEV 853.0 i
INTERMEDIATE " H
TRAVERSE ]
LINE ]
A
e Jﬂ‘—:_‘_
ﬁtt E\J
NS
T
o ]
2 B
- 111
. =
: )
HOUSE 1l <
\é Ll
<
e NOTES:
< . ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK
o I (OHWM) IS ABOUT 0.6’
N | BELOW TOP OF SEAWALL
SRR T | ® FOUND SURVEYOR'S MARKER

”* 0O WOOD STAKE ON FLOODPLAIN LINE
7/ RONALD L.\ %,
E] Z
[+ ENGER :
" PROFESSIONAL £
’.%‘;;,p o 28409 BITUMINOUS
A PAVEMENT

S
e

O

This drawing reflects the location of the improvements, floodplain line and OHWM existing
house on subject lot on April 15, 2013. Elevations are NAVD datum.

T Srares FEZae Ny 6102 Columbia Street
BF {88} H Lot 1, Block 1, Lakeview Subdivision
z PEERRY Meridian Twp, Ingham County, Michigan
805 N. CEDAR PO BOX 87 For:
MASON, MICHIGAN 48854—-0087 Keven Schoen Job No. 33—2734

517—676—-6565 April 25, 2013 Sheet 1 of 1



SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOT 1, BLOCK 1, LAKEVIEW, SE 1/4 SECTION 3, T4N, R1W, MERIDIAN TWP., INGHAM CO.,
MICHIGAN

S
P\ﬁ 5’\-5
\L?/\’ o B EDGE OF
QIR B SEAWALL
o 852.9
TOP OF
SEAWALL
DEPRESSED 6” 6” WIDE
TOP \\E;TlMBER SEA o
SEAWALL L WAl <[
852.9 P N
Mo
| . . -
- Ll
L0 —
- <C
N : S a
S N °
2 0
100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN ''d
LINE — ELEV 853.0
INTERMEDIATE
TRAVERSE /s
LINE z
z
<t
5 RE:
~ xr=
M /
™
M
‘™~
N
h v
S
s
HOUSE <
- Ld
g
7 - NOTES:
< - ORDINARY HIGH WATER MARK
L | (OHWM) IS ABOUT 0.6’
v | BELOW TOP OF SEAWALL
) v
® FOUND SURVEYOR'S MARKER
O WOOD STAKE ON FLOODPLAIN LINE
o
o0
>
" EDGE OF
BITUMINOUS
PAVEMENT
B xQ
A\
5
RN

This drawing reflects the location of the improvements, floodplain line and OHWM existing
house on subject lot on April 15, 2013. Elevations are NAVD datum.

6102 Columbia Street
Lot 1, Block 1, Lakeview Subdivision
Meridian Twp, Ingham County, Michigan

For:
Kevin Schoen Job No. 33—2734
April 25, 2013 Sheet 1 of 1

‘ MARGIN MARGIN



9L09
0809

€809 \ S09T \ 6091 S191
2809
: TTRAEX|
8809 9.09
7091 8091 Y191 8191
0609
7609

0019
LI9T\ 6191 \ TC91 €91

0 \ 1S 9Ye]

buisupoy
DT

SO0T19

4
/ i / €291 /R&/
/w 9Z19 /




To: Zoning Board of Appeals

From: Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner

Date: October 4, 2019

Re: ZBA Case No. 19-10-09-2 (O'Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC)

ZBA CASE NO.: 19-10-09-2 (O’Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC), 2703 Grand River Avenue,
East Lansing, MI 48823

LOCATION: 2703 Grand River Avenue

PARCEL ID: 20-203-012

ZONING DISTRICT: C-2 (Commercial)

The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:

Section 86-441(e)(6), Access management standards. Based on the posted speed limit along
the public street segment, access points shall have a minimum of 350 feet of spacing provided
from other access points along the same side of the street, measured centerline to centerline.

Section 86-441(e)(8), Access management standards. Based on the posted speed limit along
the public street segment, access points shall be aligned with driveways on the opposite side of
the street or offset 630 feet, measured centerline to centerline. The Director of Community
Planning and Development may reduce this to not less than 150 feet where the offsets are
aligned to not create left-turn conflicts.

Section 86-441(e)(9), Access management standards. The minimum required driveway
spacing from the intersection of Grand River Avenue and a Collector or Local street is 200 feet,
measured pavement edge to pavement edge.

Section 86-755, Schedule of requirements for parking space. Parking space shall be provided
in accordance with the design standards of this chapter and according to this schedule: for
commercial centers having a gross floor area (GFA) less than 25,000 square feet, 5 spaces per
1,000 square feet (minimum) to 5.5 spaces per 1,000 square feet (maximum).

O’Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC, the applicant, is proposing to construct a driveway that would not
meet the required setback from an existing driveway along the same side of the street, the offset
from an existing driveway on the opposite side of the street, and the setback from a street
intersection. A variance to construct a parking lot without the required number of parking spaces
is also requested. The approximately 0.896 acre (39,029.76 square feet) subject property is zoned
C-2 (Commercial) and located at 2703 Grand River Avenue, at the southeast corner of Dawn
Avenue and Grand River Avenue.



ZBA Case No. 19-10-09-2 (O’Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC)
Zoning Board of Appeals (October 9, 2019)
Page 2

Driveway variances

The applicant intends to demolish the existing 2,823 square foot building (former Paul Revere’s
Tavern) and parking lot to construct a 7,402 square foot building. The redevelopment plans
include closing the two existing driveways on Grand River Avenue and constructing one new
driveway on Grand River Avenue, and closing the existing driveway on Dawn Avenue. The
proposed driveway would not meet the standards of the Grand River Avenue Corridor Access
Management Overlay District (Section 86-441 of the zoning ordinance).

The proposed Grand River Avenue driveway must be aligned with the existing driveway on the
opposite side of the street or offset 630 feet, measured centerline to centerline. The Director of
Community Planning and Development may reduce this to not less than 150 feet where the offsets
are aligned to not create left-turn conflicts. The Township Chief Engineer reviewed the proposed
driveway and determined the offset and alignment of driveways would create left-turn conflicts.
The centerline of the proposed driveway would be offset approximately 70 feet from the existing
driveway (Firestone Auto Care) on the north side of Grand River Avenue. The applicant is
requesting a variance of 560 feet for the offset.

Driveways must have a minimum of 350 feet of spacing provided from other driveways along the
same side of the street, measured centerline to centerline. The centerline of the proposed
driveway would be located approximately 230 feet from the existing driveway (Denny’s) to the
east, therefore a 120 foot variance is requested from the required setback between driveways.

The minimum required driveway setback from the intersection of Grand River Avenue and a
Collector or Local street is 200 feet, measured pavement edge to pavement edge. Dawn Avenue is
a two-lane road without curb and gutter classified as a Local street on the Street Setbacks and
Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. The setback from the west edge of the pavement of
the proposed driveway to the east edge of Dawn Avenue pavement is approximately 135 feet. The
applicant is requesting a 65 foot variance from the required street intersection setback.

In December 2018 the Director of Community Planning and Development denied a site plan
review application submitted by the current applicant after required revisions to the site plan
were not submitted. Staff informed the applicant access to the site must be provided from Dawn
Avenue. The Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) Director of Engineering informed the
Township and the applicant the ICRD would approve maintaining the existing driveway to the
subject site on Dawn Avenue at its present location.

In April 2019 the applicant’s architect submitted a request for administrative waivers from the
standards of the access management overlay district. The Director of Community Planning and
Development did not grant the waivers to allow a driveway on Grand River Avenue and informed
the applicant the requirement of maintaining the Dawn Avenue driveway was appealable to the
Zoning Board of Appeals. The applicant did not file an appeal of the Director’s decision.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



ZBA Case No. 19-10-09-2 (O’Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC)
Zoning Board of Appeals (October 9, 2019)
Page 3

The Grand River Avenue Corridor Access Management Overlay District was adopted by the
Township Board in 2004. The access management standards were developed collaboratively
among the Township, Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT), and Ingham County Road
Department. MDOT has reviewed the site plan and did not have a concern with the proposed
driveway location. Section 86-441(c)(8) states where conflict occurs the more restrictive
standards shall apply. The ordinance also states the permissible number of access points along
Grand River Avenue is the fewest needed to allow motorists reasonable access to the site.

Parking

For commercial centers with less than 25,000 square feet of gross floor area the Code of
Ordinances requires a minimum of five parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor area. The
submitted site plan shows the proposed building would be 7,402 square feet in size, therefore 37
parking spaces are required to serve the building (not including a two space reduction for the
provision of bicycle parking) and 27 spaces are provided.

One bicycle parking space must be provided for every ten motor vehicle parking spaces required.
With 37 parking spaces required to serve the building, four bicycle parking spaces are required.
The submitted site plan shows four bicycle parking spaces (two bike racks) proposed at the
northwest corner of the building. The ordinance allows the number of required motor vehicle
parking spaces on the site to be reduced by one motor vehicle parking space for every two bicycle
parking spaces installed on a site, up to a maximum of 10 percent of the total number of required
motor vehicle parking spaces. Using this formula the required number of motor vehicle parking
spaces can be reduced by two spaces. With the allowed reduction granted for bicycle parking, the
total required motor vehicle parking is reduced to 35 spaces.

With 35 parking spaces required to serve the site and 27 parking spaces proposed the applicant is
requesting a variance of eight parking variances.

Attachments

1. Variance application dated August 15, 2019 and received by the Township on September 12,
20109.

2. Applicant’s response to review criteria dated August 15, 2019 and received by the Township on
September 12, 2019.

3. Lotsurvey (existing) dated May 1, 2014 and received by the Township on September 12, 2019.

4. Site plan dated May 7, 2018 (revision date August 22, 2019) and received by the Township on
September 12, 2019.

5. Driveway variance plan dated August 15, 2019 and received by the Township on September 12,

2019.

Site plan review denial letter dated December 13, 2018.

Zoning ordinance Sections 86-441 A-C.

8. Site location map.

No

G:\ COMMUN PLNG & DEV\PLNG\ZBA\2019 ZBA\ZBA 19-10-09\ZBA 19-10-09-2 (O'Reilly)\ZBA 19-10-09-2 staff report.zbal

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING DIVISION
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Mi 48864
{517) 853-4560

VARIANCE APPLICATION

A. Applicant Scolt Kraus, Sr VP Real Eslate & Expansion, O'Reilly Auto Enterprises, LLC
Address of App|icam 233 S Patterson Springfisld, MO 65802

Telephone (Work) 417-862-2674 Telephone (Home)
Fax Email address: ore’lyauto@andersonengineeringinc.com
interest in property (circle one): Owner [ _|Tenant [ |Option | |Other

B. Site address/location 2703 E. Grand River Avenus, East Lansing, Mt
Zoning district -2 Parcel number 3302-02-20-203-012
C. Nature of request (Please check all that apply):

Request for variance(s)

D Request for interpretation of provision(s) of the “Zoning Ordinance” of the Code of
Ordinances

D Review an order, requirements, decision, or a determination of a Township official
charged with interpreting or enforcing the provisions of the “Zoning Ordinance” of
the Code of Ordinances

Zoning Ordinance section(s) 86-441 (e) (6), 86-441 (e} (8), 86-441 (e) (9). 86-775

D. Required Supporting Material Supporting Material if Applicable
-Property survey -Architectural sketches
-Legal description -Other

-Proof of property ownership or
approval letter from owner
-Site plan to scale
-Written statement, which demonstrates how all the review criteria will be met (See

next page) -
A7 i DC&SL\'{‘ MM&S 08/15/2019
~"Signature of Applicant Print Name Date

Fee: $450.00 Received by/Date: M@Lﬂk& q/ I Z “?

! (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian Zoning
Board of Appeals, Township staff members and the Township’s representatives or
experts the right to enter onto the above described property (or as described in the
attached information) in my (our) absence for the purposes of gathering information
including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. {Note to Applicant(s):
This is optional and will not affect any decision on your application.)

R-29-19

Signature of Applicant(s) Date

Signature of Applicant(s) Date REC@W @[@
SEP 12 2019




: ». AndersonEngineeringinc.com
A ANDERSON 2045 W. Woodland Street
! = ENGINEERING Springfield, MO 65807

EMPLOYEE OWNED 417-866-2741

EXHIBIT 1: VARIANCE APPLICATION REVIEW CRITERIA — SECTION 86-441 (e) (6)

THE PROPOSED DRIVEWAY WOULD NOT BE SEPARATED AT LEAST 350 FEET FROM THE EXISTING DENNY'S
DRIVEWAY TO THE EAST.

August 15, 2019
Proposed New O'Reilly Auto Parts Store, 2703 E. Grand River Avenue, East Lansing, Michigan

1. Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to other land or
structures in the same zoning district.

The existing small property is unique compared to other land in that it currently has 2 driveways to E Grand River
Ave (M-43) and 1 driveway to Dawn Ave. The existing site is already in conflict with Meridian Township
regulations with all existing driveways not being in compliance. The proposed O’Reilly Auto Parts development
proposes to reduce the existing driveways to 1 driveway which is consistent with the Michigan DOT access
management goal of reducing accesses. Due to the very small size & location of the site at an intersection, the E
Grand River Ave drive location provides the most consistent & efficient use of the site including the safest access
for delivery frucks entering and leaving the site. Conversely, a drive entrance on Dawn Avenue aligned with the
drive on the opposite side of the street will force all traffic & delivery onto a substandard road (<24’ at driveway)
resulting in traffic conflicts. Michigan Department of Transportation has agreed to approval of a driveway on E
Grand River Avenue. The single E Grand River Ave driveway has excellent clear visibility allowing drivers ample
decision time for turning movements.

2. These special circumstances are not self-created.

The special circumstances are not self-created since the lot is an existing platted lot of record with existing
connections and no rezoning proposed. The O’'Reilly Auto Parts development actually proposes to remove an
existing access on E Grand River Ave that is already closer to the neighboring Eastern driveway than the
proposed plan.

3. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical
difficulties.

Strict enforcement would result in all traffic (including delivery) being forced on Dawn Ave which is small
substandard road (less than 2 way traffic at the existing driveway). This may cause backups and possible conflicts
onto E Grand River Ave. Michigan DOT recognizes this and has approved a single E Grand River Ave driveway.

4. That the alleged practical difficulties which result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent
the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose.

If access to E Grand River Ave is not granted, the property would not be able to safely receive delivery trucks and
customers would be directed away from the property due to the only access being on a substandard road. This
results in an unique, unfair and undue burden specific to this property that would unreasonably prevent this owner
or future owners from using the property per current permitted purposes. All of the neighboring properties have

direct access to E Grand River Ave which the expected access for business fraffic. ey
@@CEU\/@@
Exhibit 1 Page 1 of 2
SEP 12 2019

CIVIL ENGINEERING = GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING = STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING ~ LAND SURVEYING
GEQGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) - CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING - COMMERCIAL DRONE SERVICES = LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE




5. Granting the variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner
which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure
public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Yes. Granting the variance by allowing 1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will allow the fair use of the property
consistent with public interest for new jobs with safe and expected access to the property. The spirit of the zoning
ordinance is met by removing 2 existing driveways resulting in reduced traffic conflicts overall.

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the
property.

Granting the variance will not adversely affect the adjacent lands or essential character in the vicinity of the
property. Granting the variance will actually improve the area since the existing site currently has 2 driveways to E
Grand River Ave & 1 driveway to Dawn Ave that do not comply with current standards. Therefore, the granting of
1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will actually have a positive effect on the neighboring properties by keeping
commercial traffic on E Grand River Ave which is the expected conveyance of traffic. Michigan DOT agreed and
supports 1 driveway on E Grand River Ave.

7. The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the
formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.
This property is very unique in its location, layout and existing multiple driveways resulting is this specific and
unique variance need. This condition is not general or recurrent and specifically unique. The granting of the
variance is consistent with proper Engineering judgment and benefits the public good.

8. Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter.
Yes. Granting the variance to allow a single driveway on E Grand River Ave is consistent with public interest and

intent of this chapter since E Grand River Ave is the intended conveyance of commercial traffic. Michigan DOT
has reviewed and approved this layout due to the nature of the area.

cocon
cfecsemaa
ceccecccaa
L.

Exhibit 1 Page 2 of 2

N




= AndersonEngineeringlnc.com
: A N D E RS O N 2045 W. Woodland Street
Q E N G I N E E Rl N G Springfield, MO 65807
- EMPLOYEE OWNED 417-866-2741

EXHIBIT 2: VARIANCE APPLICATION REVIEW CRITERIA — SECTION 86-441 (e) (8)

ACCESS POINTS SHALL BE ALIGNED WITH DRIVEWAYS ON THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF THE STREET OR OFFSET
THE DISTANCE INDICATED IN TABLE 86-441.2, MEASURED CENTERLINE TO CENTERLINE AS SHOWN IN
FIGURE 86-441.2: 456 MPH =630 FEET.

August 15, 2019
Proposed New O'Reilly Auto Parts Store, 2703 E. Grand River Avenue, East Lansing, Michigan

1. Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to other land or
structures in the same zoning district.

The existing small property is unique compared to other land in that it currently has 2 driveways to E Grand River
Ave (M-43) and 1 driveway to Dawn Ave. The existing site is already in conflict with Meridian Township
regulations with all existing driveways not being in compliance. The proposed O’Reilly Auto Parts development
proposes to reduce the existing driveways to 1 driveway which is consistent with the overall access management.
Due to the very small size & location of the site at an intersection, the E Grand River Ave drive location provides
the most consistent & efficient use of the site including the safest access for delivery trucks entering and leaving
the site. The required 630’ offset is not obtainable by any property in the area resulting in all properties being in
conflict with this regulation. Michigan Department of Transportation has agreed to approval of a driveway on E
Grand River Avenue. The single E Grand River Ave driveway has excellent clear visibility allowing drivers ample
decision time for turning movements.

2. These special circumstances are not self-created.

The special circumstances are not self-created since the lot is an existing platted lot of record with existing
connections and no rezoning proposed. The O’Reilly Auto Parts development actually proposes to remove an
existing access on E Grand River Ave that is already closer to the neighboring Eastern driveway than the
proposed plan.

3. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical
difficulties.

Strict enforcement would result in all traffic (including delivery) being forced on Dawn Ave which is small
substandard road (less than 2 way traffic at the existing driveway). This may cause backups and possible conflicts
onto E Grand River Ave. Michigan DOT recognizes this and has approved a single E Grand River Ave driveway.

4. That the alleged practical difficulties which result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent
the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose.

If access to E Grand River Ave is not granted, the property would not be able to safely receive delivery trucks and
customers would be directed away from the property due to the only access being on a substandard road. This
results in an unique, unfair and undue burden specific to this property that would unreasonably prevent this owner
or future owners from using the property per current permitted purposes. All of the neighboring properties have

direct access to E Grand River Ave which the expected access for business traffic. DTSRy
RECEvER)

Exhibit 2 Page 1 of 2

CIVIL ENGINEERING = GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING  STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING ~ LAND SURVEYING
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS)  CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING - COMMERCIAL DRONE SERVICES - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE




5. Granting the variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner
which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure
public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Yes. Granting the variance by allowing 1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will allow the fair use of the property
consistent with public interest for new jobs with safe and expected access to the property. The spirit of the zoning
ordinance is met by removing 2 existing driveways resulting in reduced traffic conflicts overall.

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the
property.

Granting the variance will not adversely affect the adjacent lands or essential character in the vicinity of the
property. Granting the variance will actually improve the area since the existing site currently has 2 driveways to E
Grand River Ave & 1 driveway to Dawn Ave that do not comply with current standards. Therefore, the granting of
1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will actually have a positive effect on the neighboring properties by keeping
commercial traffic on E Grand River Ave which is the expected conveyance of traffic. Michigan DOT agreed and
supports 1 driveway on E Grand River Ave.

7. The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the
formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.

This property is very unique in its location, layout and existing multiple driveways resulting is this specific and
unique variance need. This condition is not general or recurrent and specifically unique. The granting of the
variance is consistent with proper Engineering judgment and benefits the public good.

8. Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter.
Yes. Granting the variance to allow a single driveway on E Grand River Ave is consistent with public interest and

intent of this chapter since E Grand River Ave is the intended conveyance of commercial traffic. Michigan DOT
has reviewed and approved this layout due to the nature of the area.

Exhibit 2 Page 2 of 2 B T




2045 W. Woodland Street

k E N GI N E E Rl N G Springfield, MO 65807

EMPLOYEE OWNED 417-866-2741

EXHIBIT 3: VARIANCE APPLICATION REVIEW CRITERIA — SECTION 86-441 (e) (9)

= A N D E RSO N AndersonEngineeringlnc.com

MINIMUM SPACING OF ACCESS POINTS FROM INTERSECTIONS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FIGURE
86-441.4 AND TABLE 86-441.3 (MEASURED FROM PAVEMENT EDGE TO PAVEMENT EDGE AS SHOWN ON THE
ADJACENT FIGURE): 45 MPH = 200 FEET.

August 15, 2019
Proposed New O’Reilly Auto Parts Store, 2703 E. Grand River Avenue, East Lansing, Michigan

1. Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to other land or
structures in the same zoning district.

The existing small property is unique compared to other land in that it currently has 2 driveways to E Grand River
Ave (M-43) and 1 driveway to Dawn Ave. The existing site is already in conflict with Meridian Township
regulations with all existing driveways not being in compliance. The proposed O’Reilly Auto Parts development
proposes to reduce the existing driveways to 1 driveway which is consistent with the Michigan DOT access
management goal of reducing accesses. Due to the very small size & location of the site at an intersection, the E
Grand River Ave drive location provides the most consistent & efficient use of the site including the safest access
for delivery trucks entering and leaving the site. Conversely, a drive entrance on Dawn Avenue aligned with the
drive on the opposite side of the street will force all traffic & delivery onto a substandard road (<24’ at driveway)
resulting in traffic conflicts. Michigan Department of Transportation has agreed to approval of a driveway on E
Grand River Avenue. The single E Grand River Ave driveway has excellent clear visibility allowing drivers ample
decision time for turning movements.

2. These special circumstances are not self-created.

The special circumstances are not self-created since the lot is an existing platted lot of record with existing
connections and no rezoning proposed. The O'Reilly Auto Parts development actually proposes to remove an
existing access on E Grand River Ave that is already closer to the neighboring Eastern driveway than the
proposed plan.

3. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical
difficulties.

Strict enforcement would result in all traffic (including delivery) being forced on Dawn Ave which is small
substandard road. This may cause backups and possible conflicts onto E Grand River Ave. Michigan DOT
recognizes this and has approved a single E Grand River Ave driveway.

4. That the alleged practical difficulties which result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent
the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose.

If access to E Grand River Ave is not granted, the property would not be able to safely receive delivery trucks and
customers would be directed away from the property due fo the only access being on a substandard road. This
results in an unique, unfair and undue burden specific to this property that would unreasonably prevent this owner
or future owners from using the property per current permitted purposes. All of the neighboring properties have

direct access to E Grand River Ave which the expected access for business traffic. 6 mr s
[RECE] V&l
SEP 12 2019

B e

CIVIL ENGINEERING = GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING ~ STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING . LAND SURVEYING
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) - CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING -~ COMMERCIAL DRONE SERVICES = LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Exhibit 3 Page 1 of 2




5. Granting the variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner
which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure
public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Yes. Granting the variance by allowing 1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will allow the fair use of the property
consistent with public interest for new jobs with safe and expected access to the property. The spirit of the zoning
ordinance is met by removing 2 existing driveways resulting in reduced ftraffic conflicts overall.

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the
property.

Granting the variance will not adversely affect the adjacent lands or essential character in the vicinity of the
property. Granting the variance will actually improve the area since the existing site currently has 2 driveways to E
Grand River Ave & 1 driveway to Dawn Ave that do not comply with current standards. Therefore, the granting of
1 driveway to E Grand River Ave will actually have a positive effect on the neighboring properties by keeping
commercial traffic on E Grand River Ave which is the expected conveyance of traffic. Mlchlgan DOT agreed and
supports 1 driveway on E Grand River Ave.

7. The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the
formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.
This property is very unique in its location, layout and existing multiple driveways resulting is this specific and
unique variance need. This condition is not general or recurrent and specifically unique. The granting of the
variance is consistent with proper Engineering judgment and benefits the public good.

8. Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter.
Yes. Granting the variance to allow a single driveway on E Grand River Ave is consistent with public interest and

intent of this chapter since E Grand River Ave is the intended conveyance of commercial traffic. Michigan DOT
has reviewed and approved this layout due to the nature of the area.

Exhibit 3 Page 2 of 2

H




AndersonEngineeringlnc.com
A N D E R S O N 2045 W. Woodland Street
E N G | N E E Rl N G Springfield, MO 65807

> EMPLOYEE OWNED 417-866-2741

EXHIBIT 4: VARIANCE APPLICATION REVIEW CRITERIA

SECTION 86-775: THE REQUIRED NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES IS 37 (MINIMUM).
August 15, 2019
Proposed New O'Reilly Auto Parts Store, 2703 E. Grand River Avenue, East Lansing, Michigan

1. Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure that are not applicable to other land or
structures in the same zoning district.

The existing site is unique in that complying with development building & landscaping setbacks, interior
landscaping, driveway area & access connections, and stormwater requirements results in very limited area to
meet the full parking requirements with the full building area counted as retail (and not accounting for the storage
area). We request a variance to this ordinance to allow a minimum of 27 spaces as indicated on the attached Site
Development Plan since it is not possible to provide any more spaces and comply with Meridian Township
development requirements. The Owner’s experience with operating similarly sized stores throughout the nation
indicates that 27 spaces is typically more than adequate, since only approximately 3,280 square feet of the
building is retail area, and the remainder of the building serves primarily as storage and delivery area. If the
variance is granted, any future use will have to comply with the constructed parking spaces since the variance
stays with the site.

2. These special circumstances are not self-created.

The lot is an existing platted lot of record with no rezoning proposed which allows the proposed use; however, the
strict interpretation of the whole building as full retail (only ~3,280 square feet of the building is retail) results in
excessive parking required. After providing the required building & landscaping setbacks, interior landscaping,
driveway area & access connections, and stormwater requirements, the property can only provide 27 spaces.

3. Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical
difficulties.

The Iot is an existing platted lot of record with no rezoning proposed with existing connections which should allow

development; however, the strict interpretation of the whole building as full retail results in excessive parking
required. In reality, only ~3,280 square feet of the building is retail.

4. That the alleged practical difficulties which result from a failure to grant the variance would unreasonably prevent
the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose.
The lot cannot meet the full parking requirement as an existing platted lot of record with no rezoning proposed

due to the strict interpretation of the whole building as full retail and complying with the building & landscaping
setbacks, interior landscaping, driveway area & access connections, and stormwater requirements. The reality is

only ~3,280 square feet of the building is retail.
; C.'; - / 7 l‘,_:"' T
ID)E@G&%J\V

SEP 12 2019

Exhibit 4 Page 1 of 2

CIVIL ENGINEERING . GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING - STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING =~ LAND SURVEYING
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) - CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING = COMMERCIAL DRONE SERVICES .~ LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE




5. Granting the variance is the minimum action that will make possible the use of the land or structure in a manner
which is not contrary to the public interest and which would carry out the spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure
public safety, and provide substantial justice.

Yes. The allowance of reduction of required parking will result in less impervious surface resulting in less
stormwater discharge which is better for the overall area. The spirit of the zoning ordinance is met by the Owner
(as an expert in retail sales) stating that the full 37 spaces are not needed.

6. Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the
property.

No. It will actually improve the essential character of the area by reducing impervious surface and by complying
with the landscaping requirements to maintain the character of the area.

7. The conditions pertaining to the land or structure are not so general or recurrent in nature as to make the
formulation of a general regulation for such conditions practicable.
This property is very unique in its location and layout resulting is this specific and unique variance need. This
condition is not general or recurrent.

8. Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter.
Yes. The allowance of reduction of required parking will result in less impervious surface resulting in less

stormwater discharge which is better for the overall area. The spirit of the zoning ordinance is met by the Owner
(as an expert in retail sales) stating that the full 37 spaces are not needed.

o om0 e
coamm=amoans

Exhibit 4 Page 2 of 2




TAS S96H

‘ou }ss8ys ‘'ON 80r 34N

e

oc o0z o 0 oL 0oC
0C =T *F1VOS

10T ‘T AB
-31vd

IJOIBABN Y
‘A8 d3IA0dddVY

‘A8 03aNOIS3d

yseure) ‘N
‘Ad NMVAd

@3NSSI AZANNS +1-10-S0
SNOISIA3S

*Bip noA ai10j9q __ﬂu
MO|3(] sieum mouy

Aoaing 9217, / orydersodoy,

/ FDLL PUeT NSOV/VLTV
133HS

ue3IYIIN ‘Ajuno)) weysuyg
‘digsumo J, ueipLoy
"MTY “NP'L

0C uonod9as

/1 AN 243 Jo 3red
NOILYD07 LO3r0¥d

Xeq - 97.$-628 (L1t)
TOL - LL9S X ¥.9Z-798 (L1t)
pPpo( QLIIdYS :}oeju0))

70859 O ‘Preydurids
EOwuoﬁmm ﬂuﬁom mmN
DT ‘sosudiajuyg
oy A[[19y,0

IN3ITO

€788% TN “Auno) weysuy
‘(194) Suisue] iseq

"OAY I9ATY pueIn ‘H €0LT
T ‘sosudiojug oy
AIY.0

103rodd

/G28-2%¢ (8¥Z) xpA
1$6/—-25¢ (8%2) "lIel
290G—2¥$8y IN ‘OVILNOd
"INV AYVMAOOM LLL9Y
SYIANIONT SNVY4 % MVYMON

SJoUUD|d PuDT
SJIOABAING puUDT]
sJeauibul [IAID

SAFANIONA

1NO NV3TO ‘00
LNOJSNMOQ sa
JONVISIA Q¥003y (€))
JONVLSIA a3dNSYIN W)
NOILYAT13 ¥0014 HSINI4 44
AVM—40—LHOI MOy
AN ALY3JOHd Vd
3LIYINOD "ONOD
LIVHdSY ‘HdSV
NO¥I ONNO4 NOYI a4
NOLLYAT13 V13N 40 3943 09'8/9 W3
NOILVATT3 ¥3LLND 05849 N9
NOILYAT13 84Nn0 40 dOL 00'6/9 0L

318v0 ANNOYOY3IANN X3
NIVIN SYO ONILSIX3

(Y102 ‘¥ YAV :@3LSINDIY)
S1S1¥60708 #LIMOLL NOISAA
(118 ¥O) 1L1L—Z8% (008)
(910 SSIN) TIVO—3NO

*S103rodd 11V NO

vsLe—-6¢e€ (L1S)

YIOVNYN “YINTVd IAALS

11OVLNOD

90687 IN ‘ONISNV

avoyd 9NISNYT L¥0d 0042
OSL 9NISNV1

("L'0°@'N) NOILYLYOJSNVYL
40 ININLHVCIA NVOIHOIN

VNOIS Jl4dvdl 'NIVdd WJOLS

WOQ'LSYOWO0D T1aVIOSINLLSYHAIS
TIVNG

8685—v¢¢ (£1G)

SONILSVH QIS :LOVLNOD
LSYONOD

“NOISIATTII I18@vd
WOQ'LLY®896Z19 VI
16.6—-9SY (8¥2)

JOINYIS ¥INOLSND :LOVINOD
131V

-INOHd3T4L

y¥¥6—L9C (888)
3DIAYIS ¥INOLSND :LOVLNOD
Y3LN3ID SNOLLVY3IdO ONISNV

A9YINT SYINNSNOD

‘SVO

WOD ME1BLENd TIVNT
7659-202 (L1S)

YINVE Y3134 :LOVLINOD
OIMLOFTI ANV LHOM
“YALYM 40 Q¥Y0g 9NISNV]
40 8¥¥v—es8 (L1S)

ON3 % ‘M'd 40 ¥0L193dIa

‘AY3IAIS ANOWAVY :LIVLNOD

WOQ A9YINISWOOSLIMOLLNIISIAIIASSIA
TV

oziz—vLe (L18)

3Sv19Id ALYVIN :LOVLNOD

A94ANT SYINNSNOO

£288% IN ‘ONISNV1 LSV3

L3 HLIAS O Qd01AVO 00LZ
ONIYIINIONT ® SHIOM Jl18nd

dIHSNMOL NVIQIM3N

‘NIVN 431VM ANV

N9IS 3 BN TRERE | JIMIS WIOLS ¥IMIS AIVIINVS
T e NOILVYNIQYOO0D ALITILN
S3ANM (‘HO) AV3IHY3AO f————
F10d ANS F10d ALMILN
NISYE HOLYD AY X3 o 6990001 0€€# Al UEBIYOIN JO B1BlS Nm_r ooe“_m m.:_mmow_ﬂo_ou ﬂ_wm::ﬁ_ o%d MN
X 10158104 paiaisiboy uapui jeaj-a[i Ejepiod eljiL 4
NIVHQ WHOLS ONILSIX3 0 O SMOYEINOG T ANOHLNY S | oemiiemioN. | SOPKOuSinCiody | zp
NISVE HOLVD F1OHNVA 8 a|dey femioN saplouejeld 190y 9z
NIV ¥3LVM ONILSIX3 |m_>|®|._<> s o oL a|dey AemioN saplouejeld a0y sz
. LNVHAAH QNN v a|dey AemioN sapilouejejd 190y vz
LNO NVI10 °NVS ONILSIX3 S \om e Sidai Ao SorioiaEd g =
YIMIS AYVLINVS ONILSIX3 O Zl a|depy AemioN saproueje|d 190y zZZ
J1OHNVIA t4 ajdeyy femionN sepioueje|d 180y (4
aN3Ioa] NN ¢ uapuiT yeaj-api] e}epiod BijiL 0z
8 uapui jeaj-api Ejepiod eljiL 6l
ZL a|dey AemioN soploueje|d 100y 8l
G, Sl a|depy Aemiopn sopioueje|d Jaoy Ll
4 o,mwmkomu:s ¥z ysnoojfauoy soyjuedeLy BISHIPAlD 91
SN e, SO vz jsnoojfauoy soyjueseu) eisijipa| Gl
S & T £088S T, o,ws\m TR - a|dely AemioN soplouejeid 100y ¥l
.,,,:AW mo%\ﬂ_:m m\,n\. (peea) 9 ysy yoeig eabiu snuixe. £l
I iocx Zl uapui jeaj-api e}epiod eijiL 4"
S o i IYNOISS3dodd ¢ = ¢
H % LOONVAYN  F TS NVOIHOIN 40 3LVIS uml gzl Japjexog opunBau Je0y L
% Ky S £0S¢S ON 'S'd 0L wj|3 uesuswy BuedLIAWE SNW|N i
AN NIAIA s aLva ITOUVAVN NIAI 0L aidey kemion seploueye;d 100y 6
r\\w & 0¢ w3 ueuaqis ejiwnd snwjn 8
:::o:z 40 5l Jepjexog opunBau 180y L
T 9 92nidg anjg opelojon suabund eadid 9
‘NMOHS AT3LVHNIOV ANV 8 aonidg anjg opeltojon suabund E821d ]
3INYL SI NOFYIHL NOILYWHOANI TIV ‘431738 ANV NOILVNMOANI ‘I903ITMONM AW 40 1S39 3IHL OL ‘0STV 9 a|deyy AemioN saplouejeld Jaoy v
$10Z ‘9l TINdY 0l ajdeyy AemionN sopioueje|d Jaoy ¢
NO QILITdNOD SYM M¥OM d13Id 3HL "NIF¥3HL QIIHI03dS SI HOHM LVHL @330X3 LON S30d AIANNS o0l a|dely Aemion soplouejeid 190y Z
SIHL 40 ADVANOOY TIYNOILISOd 3AILYT3Y FHL ‘NVOIHOIN 40 ALVIS 3FHL NI G3¥3LSIOFY HOAIAUNS Zl o|deyy AemioN sepiouejeld 190y I
ANV V SY ‘NOINIO TYNOISS3408d AW NI LVHL S3ILLY3D ¥FHLHNA TINDISHIANN ‘NOILVOIAILYID eI o M Lo} SWEN Uowwo? sweNTeIuEIog  HISI
SIHL 40 3Lv¥a 3HL NO 103443 NI ANV SdSN VLIV A8 @3LdOAY SY SAYVANVLS AOVHNOOV 3IHL : 2
OL INVNS¥Nd “403¥3HL V F1avl 40 ZL ANV +1 ‘€L ‘ALl PlL ‘6 ‘@ 9L ‘aL ‘DL ‘49 P9 ‘S v ‘C
‘T 'L SWALI 3ANTONI ANV ‘SASN ANV Y11V A8 Q3LdOQV ANV Q3IHSIIEVLISI ATLNIOM ‘SAZANNS FLULL (o210 W) pL0Z-1Z-¥ :pajeidwon ajeg
ANV NSOV/VLTV ¥04 SLNIWIMINDIY TIVL3IA QUVANYLS WNWINIA 110Z JHL HLIM JONVQ¥0IJV NI I (Buisuen 1se3) diysumoy ueipLS :uoneao qor
3JAYW 3¥3IM @3SVE SI 11 HOIHM NO AZAYNS IHL ANV LV1d ¥0 dVW SIHL LVHL A4IL¥3D OL SI SIHL Ll : (193) m.om_._ — .Lm.nE:z qor
ANV ININDOTIAIA NvEdn :
ANV ONISNOH 40 LNINL¥VdIA JHL ANV AONIOV LNIWIOVNYN AONIONINT Tvy3Ia34 3HL 40 SAVW 971 'sesudiajuz ony Kj1ey,0 :aweN jual )
JHL OL 9NIQYOOOY SYIMY ANVZYH Q0074 NIHLIM 3 LON S30Q NOI¥IH (3EIN0S3IA ALYALONd IHL 0L
ANV 3LVARMD ONINIOPGY NO ¥V 0 HONOYHL SSVd LVHL SALMILN ANV 40 NOILYJO1 3517 KiGYUOAU] 061
ANV AHLN3 40 LNIOd 3FHL SMOHS AJAYNS JHL O S13FULS OI1ANd ONINIOPAY HONOYHL ALYIJO¥d il 1oelL

JHL ¥3LINT Y3HLIF ALY3JO¥d FHL 40 NOILVYIHO JFHL ¥04 A3¥INDIY SIONY3S ALMLN TIV

‘13341S @3LvIIa3d A10Mnand v 9NI3d

HLOE ‘ANN3AY NMVA ONV (S¥—W) INNIAV H3AIY ANV "3 OL SS3O0V LO3MIA SVH ALYIJO¥d SIHL
‘NMOHS SV SI @VO¥ ¥O L133MLS ONILOISYILNI LSIYVIN IHL WO¥4 FONVLSIA IHL

‘NMOHS A1LJ3¥¥0D

J4Y STVIYALYA 40 3dAL ANV 3ZIS ‘NOILVOOT 3HL ANV ‘LSIX3 ATIVNLOY NMOHS SLNINNNOW TV
‘NO3Y3HL d310Id3A ANV NMOHS

3SOHL NVHL ¥3HLO ‘INVS 3HL 40 NOILOIASNI TVOISAHd TN43IHYVO V WOHH ONI¥VIddV ALY3IJO¥d
SIHL ONILO344V S3SN ¥O SANNOY¥D TVINNG ‘SIIHILINID ‘SAVMIAINA ‘SLNIWHOVOMONI ‘SLNIWISV3I
‘SLOM4ANOD 3INIT AYVANNOE HO VIYY NI SIIOVLYOHS ‘SLOMANOO 'SIIONVAIYOSIA ON 3¥V IH3HL
‘SLNIWNIAOYJNI ANV SONIQTING dIVS 40 NOILYOO1 IHL OL IFONIYI4IY HLM SNOILVINOIY

ANV STINY ¥3IHLO HO SNOLOMLSIH ‘SIONVNIGHO ONINOZ 40 SNOLLVIOA ON ¥V I¥IHL
‘ALY3dON¥d 3HL 40 S3NIT AYVANNOA 3IHL NIHLIM

JYV TIV ANV NMOHS SV 34V SLNIW3IAOHAWNI ANV SONIQTINEG 40 3dAL ANV NOILYOO1 ‘3ZIS IHL
‘INVS JHL 38V NOISSISSOd TVNLOV 40 S3NIM ANV S3NIT JILIL JHL

‘1034¥00 ¥V NOIYIHL NMOHS SIONVLSIA

ANV S3SYN0D ‘NOILVNMOANI IHL ANV LI LVHL ANV ANNO¥9 IHL NOdN AV ATIVNLOV SI ,A3AMNS
33¥L / OIHdV¥90dOL / FILIL ANV WSOV/VLTV, CITILILNI 3N A8 d3dVd3dd AIAYNS 40 Lvid 3HL 'L

© No o

IS LI T

‘IVHL ANVAWNOO 3ONVHNSNI J1LLL OOVOIHO ANV NOILVHYOdY0O FILIL NVIAI3IN
‘ANVANOD ALMIGVIT G3LINIT J¥VMVIAA V ‘071 ‘SISINHYILNT OLNY ATIIN0 OL dIIHILYID AG3H3H |

AIALNS 40 31VOIdI1d30

'SQY003Y
ALNNOO WVHONI ‘0ZL 39Vd ‘£98| 43817 NI Q3QY003Y Q33A ALNVYYVM NI 34M ANV ANVESNH
“TI00SI¥@ 'V N3¥VM ANV TI00SI¥A 'd SIWVP OL Q3IAIANOD ONIFF ANV Q381¥0S3A 3A08V IHL

'SAY003Y ALNNOD WYHONI ‘(033

ALNVYYVM ¥3d 8% ANV L+ S39Vd ‘I ¥38M) 0f 39vd ‘LI ¥381 NI 3Q¥003Y SV J03yIHL
1v1d 3IHL OL SNIQYOJOV ‘NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIAIYIN ‘SINOH H3AIN
4vQ30 ‘403¥3IHL 1334 09 HLNOS 3HL Ld30X3 £ 101 40 TIV ANV ‘9 ANV ‘S ‘¥ SLOT 40 TV

(Y0934 ¥3d) NOILdIYOS3AA 1voO A1

'SQY003Y ALNNOD WVHONI ‘OLL
39Vd ‘2981 ¥38M NI d3QY0D3Y d33A ALNVHYVM NI 34IM ANV ANVESNH “1700SI¥a 'V NIYVX
ANV T100SIdd "d SIAVI OL d3IA3IANOD ANV JANVS JHL ONIFE ANV d391¥0S3d 3A08V 3HL

S3YOV G/8°0 ¥O ‘L4 "DS 90°9LL‘8C :ONINIVLNOD
¢1l0—£0¢—0¢—20—2¢0—¢¢ 'ON dl XVl

"ONINNIO3E 40 LNIOd 3HL OL 3AV NMVA dIVS 40 3NN AVM—40—LHOIY LSV3 3JHL ONOTV (1334
£'9GZ "3,60.L0°'N SY Q3QY¥003Y) L334 98'¢HZ 'M,££€,92.10°N JONIHL 3AV NMVA AIVS 40 3NN
AVM—40—LHOIY LSY3 3FHL NO LINIOd V OL (1334 G'¢8l SY Q3IQY¥003Y) L334 £1L'e8L 'M,9¢,2#.88'S
JONIHL (1334 Z2/L 'M,S0.10°S SV Q3Q¥003Y) L334 Z¥'2LL "3,££,92.10°S IONIHL ‘9 101 AIvS
40 Y3INYOOD LISVIHLYON JFHL OL "3AV dIAIM ANVYD "3 AIVS 40 IANIT AVM—J0—LHOIY ATIIHLNOS
3HL ONOTV (L334 G'961 SV Q3AY¥OO3Y) 1334 G£°961 '3,00,00.04°S FONIHL (3AM ,0S) INNIAV
NMYQ 40 3NIT AVM—40—LHOIY LSVY3 3FHL ANV (3AM ,0LL) (£¥—W) INNIAY ¥3AIN ONVYO LSV3
40 3N AVM—40—LHOIY HLNOS 3HL 40 NOILOISYILNI 3IHL ONIFZ OSTV ‘¥ LOT AIVS 40 ¥3INYOD
LSIMHLYON 3HL LV ONINNIO3E SV d34I¥0S3A 9NIFE 0STV ‘SA¥03Y ALNNOD WYHONI “(a33d
ALNVYYVM ¥3d 8% ANV L+ S39Vd ‘I ¥38M) 0f 39vd ‘LI ¥381 NI 3Q¥003Y SV J03yIHL
1V1d 3IHL OL SNIQYOJIV ‘NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIAIYIN ‘SINOH H3AIN
4vQ30 ‘403Y3IHL 1334 09 HLNOS 3HL Ld30X3 £ 101 40 TIV ANV ‘9 ANV ‘S ‘¥ SLOT 40 TV

(@3AIAYNS SY) NOILdIYOS3A 1vOIT

‘ALY3d0dd 103ransS 3IHL 40 ¥3INY0O 1SVIHIMON
JHL 1V 3NIM ALY3dOdd 1SV3 JHL 40 LSV3 Zl'¢ 8dNJ 3134ONOD 40 Move

‘ALY3dOdd 1J3rans 3JHL Y3INYOO LSVIHLYON 3FHL 40 LSIMHLHON ,SS
ATILVANIXOdddY IANIT ALY3d0dd HLYON JHL 40 HLIHON ,l€°G NOIS NOIAd

‘ALd3d0dd 103ranS 3IHL 40 ¥3INY0O 1SIMHLNOS 3JHL 40 HLHON
SS ATALVAIXOdddY 3NN ALY¥3dOdd LS3M 3IHL 40 1Sv3 ,8¢°0 LINIGVO 1%LV

‘ALY3d0dd 103rans 3IHL 40 ¥3INYOO LSIMHLNOS 3HL
4V3IN 3N AL¥3d0dd HLNOS 3HL 40 HLYON ,08°0 GV7IS IL3IJONOD 40 ¥INH0O

‘AL¥3d0¥d 133ranS 3IHL 40 3INIT HLYON 3HL 40 LNIOHdIN 3FHL VAN
AN ALY3dOdd HLIYON 3JHL 40 HLYON 1334 $#¢'9 ONVHY3AO ONIQTING 40 d3INY0O

‘ALY3d0dd 103ransS 3IHL 40 3INIT HLYON 3HL 40 LNIOddIN
JHL ¥V3IN 3N ALd3d0dd HLYON 3IHL 40 HIMON 1334 6/°0 d3INJ0JD ONIATINg

SININWHOVOHONS

(X, 3NOZ) "110Z ‘9l
1SN9NY :3LVa 3AILO3443 ‘AZS1006909Z 'ON (WMI4) 4V 3LVH JONVHNSNI 00T
A8 @3LVOIONI SV VIV QYVZYH dO0Td V NIHLIM Q3LVO0T 1ON SI ALY3dO¥d IHL

d10N @dVZvH dOoO14

(*3,00,00.0£°S)

"SA¥0038 ALNNOD WVHONI ‘O 39Vd ‘S1V1d 40 LL ¥39M NI d3ay¥003y

SV .SAINOH M3AIM ¥VAd3IO, 40 “IAV ¥3AIM ANVYS 3 40 3INIT AYM—40—LHOIN
ATHIHLNOS @IHSIEVLST AISNOIATNA IHL OL JIHSNOLLYTIY NI 34V SONIMvIE TV

310N AdvYANNO4

‘ALY3d0¥d 103rdnsS JHL 40 ¥3INY0D LS3IMHLIY¥ON JHL WOdd £9 ATILVAIXOdddVY
“3AY NMVQA 40 3NM MO LSIM FHL ANV (S¥—W) "3AV ¥3AR ANVYO "3 40 3NN
‘MO’ ATYIHLNOS 3HL 40 NOILO3ISHILNI JHL LV d3LVOO01 SI LNVHAAH ¥V3IN 3HL

‘ddld 40 401 3HL Ol 1334 ,00°S
SI NIVIN ¥31VM 40 HLd3d WNWININ FHL 304 QYVANVLS dIHSNMOL NVIQIMIWN 3HL

TIGP—2G8 (£1G) NMO¥E MOI¥ ¥INNVTd dIHSNMOL
NVIQIMIN d3d 3NNIAY NMVQ 804 ONINIAM AVM—JO0—LHOIM d3NNVId ON

LL—GEE (£1G) ¥IMOT 3SIT YANNVId NOILYLHOJSNVML 40 LNIWLYYJIA NYOIHOIW

d3d (£¥—W) "IAV YA ANVHO "3 ¥04 ONINIAIM AVM—AO0—LHOI QANNVId ON
‘NOILYOO0T 40 SSINLOVX3I d0

‘SSINILI N0 FHL OL IAVIN 39 NVO FILNVAVNO ON ANV ‘SIINVAWNOD ALMLLN
40 SQY023d ANV STVIOI440 TVCIOINAN WOYd d3INIVLIE0 3¥3M SNOILVIOT ALIMLN

"03LON 3ISIMYIHLO SSTINN ‘SNOILVATTI ONLSIXI 38V SNOILVATTI TV

S3LON AIAENS OIHAVHOO0dOL

(NMOHS SV) ‘NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHONI 40 SQ33A 40 ¥3LSIDIAY

JHL 40 301440 3HL NI 62+ 39Vd ‘LLLZ ¥38IT NI 6661 ‘6L AYVNNYF
Q30Y¥003¥—3Y ANV ¥OLL 39Vd ‘£04Z ¥38MN NI 6661 ‘LI AMVNNYF A30¥003Y
INIWNIFYOV LNIWISVI NV 40 SNOISIAOYd ANV SWY3L O NOILJ3OX3

(NMOHS SV) ‘NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHONI 40 S@33d

40 Y3LSI93Y 3IHL 40 301440 IHL NI 818 3I9Vd ‘£L£LL ¥38MN NI 6861 ‘€T
AYVNNVI d30¥003d T103SIMA 'V NIJVM 34IM ANV TI0O0SI¥A "d SANVE Ad
NOILVHOdY0D ADIFO—VEIO OL d3LNVYO LNINISVI 40 LNVYD 4 NOILdJ3OX3

(NMOHS SV ‘AL¥3dodd LO3rans

NOdN LON) "NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOO WYHONI 40 SA33d 40 ¥3ALSIHIY IHL

40 301440 3HL NI LL6 39Vd ‘G09L ¥38M NI £861 ‘¥L AMVNNVYI Q3A¥003Y
T100SI™MA 'V NIJVM ANV TIOOSI¥A "d SIAVE A8 NOILYHOdYOD NVOIHOIN V
‘ANVANOD 3INOHJ3TAL 1738 NVOIHOIN OL Q3ILNV¥9 LNIW3ASYI 3 NOILd3DX3

"318VLLO0Td LON 3V ¥O/ANV AL¥3dO¥d IHL
40 dIHSY3INMO 3HL OL ¥3434 H ANV 4 ‘0 ‘g ‘V :SNOILJ3OX3 IVIO3dS '€

Il LYvd ‘g 31Nd3IHOS

v10C
‘92 AYVNYE34 :3LVQ 3AILD3H43 ‘€9/S—+L "ON 3114 (ANVJNOD 3JONVUNSNI
F1LIL 09VOIHO ¥O4 LNIOV) NOILYYOJYOD TNLIL NVIQIYIN FONIYILIY

J1vOS OL 1ON

dejN uoneoso|

‘A8 HVNNVH

o))
/M// /\
& vy, NN

YETE

N A

SN

4a INMHL 30N

— 9

av0y NY¥OQvovH -g

Q?T&Q S

QY INVT Mdvd

/

S3LON 1d0d3d F11IL

'906Y—£68 (£1S) LV LNIWNDOT3AIA ANV

ONINNVId ALINNWAOO 40 ¥OLO3IMIQ ‘HOVETISSIIN MYV LOVLNOO ‘MIAIY Nv1d
LIS 1V 301440 ONINNVId JHL A8 TVAOYddY OL L1O3rdnS ANV 3JONVNIQYO ONINOZ
dIHSNMOL NVIQIY3IN JHL WOMd A3NIVLIE0 SLINIWIHINOIY ONINOZ viva ALIS TV

"INJNdOT3A3A ANV ONINNVId ALINNWWOO
40 ¥0103dId JHL AE8 d3A0¥dHdV SNVId HLIM JONVAY0OOV NI dANIVLINIVAA
38 TIVHS ONIdVOSANVT ‘3JONVNIQHO d3d 'SAYVANVLS IdVISANV OI4103dS ON

1334 GI REVEN]
1334 GL 3ais
(avoy 40 3INMYILNID IHL WOY4) 1334 00L :LNOYHA

SINIWITINOIT MOVELSS
30VdS dVOIANYH L 9NIANTONI ‘SIOVAS ONIMYVd 6S
S30VdS SIX3

1334 3YVNOS 000'%
V3dv 10T NNWININ

d314103dS 10N
JOVYIA0D 101 WNWIXVIA

1334 001
HLQIM LOT WNWINIW

1334 &¢

LHOIFH ONITTING WNNIXVIA

LOI¥LSIA TVIONINWNOD ‘T—D
ONINOZ ONILSIX3

SIYOV G/8°0 ¥O L4 DS 90°9iL'8%
LEEL AN

Ald3d0dd 103rdnNs - viva 41iISs

| (1£S6¥0—C10Z "ON LNINNALSNI _
_ ONICTING ALIUONOD % X008 ‘G330 ALNVYY¥VM :30¥N0S)
HOH 0°8CF £C68% IN ‘ONISNV _
AHOLS—OML X3 LS LANTVM N ZIl¥ ’
_ _ONIqung 301440 OT1 ‘aNN3AV NMVA Zv6¥
3AV NMVQ Zv6r# "4INMO | S1Zs8 Wi
| CZ'2%8 AN MN OAd .21 0758 KLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL, PA77777777777 0777770777705 e 440 1nHS—
| SL°058 WY e U eczcn 44 7 19758 . e ; o
NISVE HOLVD Y
T 200 ¥L'¥¥8 ANI 'N "ONOD .81 . | & Bl B |»
| T izzee 8czee . q - < £0268x" | g lo S o
— 27 6#°S¥8 ANI "3 "ONOJ ,CI _— I~ > | " IVINLSNANI
o — T o T T s oo B .
1228 HN W¥0LS > o 5 | -ddNOZ
——— - ‘|/ -
Q\ . BoiE e ¥1158 * — | SLINM dIHSNMOL NIHLM 08'1S8% wuois 7y x3  8L1S8 : < * |5 5 ONIqINg, X3
WA= 98'9¥8 ANI ‘M OAd .ZI o158 £L168 ¥ — : |2 S i
. . . .. : 1>
_ . 98°9¥8 ANI '3S OAd .2} | 010-€0z-02-20-20—¢c ~ 10'9¥8 ANI ‘M "ONOD .ZI " N o Z o
o . oy o N .
sz'ice  00'ls8 9.°058 C ee *ON QI 1304vd 10°9¥8 ANI "3 *ONOD ,ZI _ 2 =
6L'1580L 16715801 vieq . NISVE HOLVO ( 0L'158 i <
| \T 90'158 ocls8 Loise o S S8 - NISVE HOLVD © >
96'1S80L Vv © & @ o .
_ _ _ X y3aLSdANa IVINLSNANI » L1IVHASY 9 — &, © E 2 ] S1INM dIHSNMOL
(SQ¥0O3Y ALNNOO WYHONI :30MNOS) 17'158 . (ne'd S0917) g% & | 25 S NIHLW
_ €288y IN ‘ONISNV LSV3 _ / x 6£°l68 oL'ls8 3ON34 | -d3NoZ L 107 40 ,09 'S ANOHdITL T38 © m . < @ 1= &
w_>< Y3IAR ONVYO °3 1042 _—doom ‘ NVOIHOIN ,01X,01 ~llg H.w_._c_u_._ﬂ.ummﬂ @ m /
NISNV LSV3 40 SANN3Q IS8 [6z'1c8 £2'158 02’58 . . : = > #00—202—-02—20-Z0—€€
| N0 Laa _/m omioIm  |WSISeoLjericear  ejiseal 8L115801 iRl saz580L yocse Hon_% i 2 ” \ "N “ON QI T30NvVd
& - T
_ 28°268 ‘4'd _ & 12168 ® @ m / _—
._IIHH . ) 92'Z¥8 ANI ‘N AV .8
| ONITING ONIGIS ® 0078 sLzeg | N o'lss (W.sieal (d).ge8L (WM.98.27.88S _— S| usmono Y | E 8EZ¥8 ANI 'S AV 8
HOH £%2F . <o x I £rice, «LY'158 5758 _ & al - 81258 NI
- o o o N " ¢ v L x o x
| LNVANVIS (SANNEC, S| 3R HVAI @4 01> /,/i Bl o Vd 0 N fo9zes  14zss ) . |3 gl | @ HA AYVLINVS
AV ¥3AR ONVYO ‘3 loLz# 2 40 3NN LSv3 86058 x carpegy O 00'1S8 ®__,08'0 ILIUONOD 'S .80°0 — N
e v 66°6¥8 O x / 1017 40 2Z 'N ‘LNINHOVOYON3 NOYI "aNd \\ ~ — // =
J— | o 67 X 80'0G8 34/ 1 X _ X MOVALIS VI S ¥3LIN ORLOTTI— ~_ T ——
) \I Shes . i 0G°'1SBOL 8¥°1S8IL 9£°1580L 92'IS8 #9'1589L 00726891 L1'7SBOL ./ 1S0d / 386l QAVN
09208 ULLLLLLLLLLLL LY L LIS SS LI f 2000000 QS 6c"1g8 « — a . auvno—/ & / 1104 AL W) 30 HoNad
L | ¥8'eg8 ~Livesx > nm.n.wﬁfm_.u cHISeMo BIIEEM /.8.08 e0mm £aisend egicend 8" CH MIVINHONZG
- __ NAmod—= - I — — N N o I ©
| OeEE = \ 6ess -y nM ey m. _ o Raﬁx 72298 > W x
o L. D%VA Q m x x
| SLINM JIHSNMOL NIHLW * &g =/ 2))(9) YLL¥Y8 ANI | ® S#EX o P g &
S o 3 "MN|OAd ¥ 3 /d 40 o - ® 9
| 00-g0z-02-20-Z0~g¢ \ g4 H E z_M«m__.wouw 0Z'I58 N9 M0 Lniavo \ &
: ) M = 4
< T & ; S SOV S/8'0 ¥O RS LBLY
| 7 = = o SLIAN dIHSNMOL NHLIk - 13 ‘0S 90'911'88 3 LNFWHOVOXON3 -
IVIOY43INNOD - N £G°1G8 * ¥£°168 (£°168 x VIWV 3LIS x 967168 _ ‘168 x # & a
‘ ; ] & @ 9L'1s8 ot || 8 ¢
_ ¢—0 d3INOZ N - €  Z10-£02—-02-20-20—¢€¢€ \ — oezeg || N [
S 1 *ON QI T30Yvd ( 0¢ 39vd ‘Ll ¥38n ) _m N 5 x
b (3]
_ A 1Z °d ‘Ll T v nrm SINOH ¥3AIY dVd3D c An_>._.v><;|_|=n_w u m u m
o - Z 2
_ 9 'ON Llv1d N m LVHasY [ 3 > m 31340N0D m( o % g ° “
b - ~ L g ¢
S.HOSIAY3dNS &8 | © o pe (3 )\ @ e 23 smore AN NNy @ ® 2 |3 [® N ——
| 8coge TS b " 8% & O} ‘@~ 98'9¥8 ANI ‘3S OAd ¥ e N[ »
9 107 s ep 5> = 2 o 98'8y8 WM JAIHIIE 5 88 14 o 12
_ aa | . N 3 SHOOY S 3 NISve HoLvo—"| 8 g8 C & 2
% 2l gy &l _——3dVOSANVI— @ ® an (= 4|2
_ eX v gl 66198 * e e ¥8'158 e & 6¥'1S8NO 92°158N9 ® x kﬁ\\ .
Vv & ® 3| w_ LL168 a 1 — @ &
JN = - - Qo o -
_ ¥3LSINNG & oy o ol & o ]
12168 1=\ + b e 8
| TN N 0 2 glE 32 flg.ze 28020 g
01'058 x INOO ... |2 a S ; : N2 ks g |
| 2008 « A N “ a 3 ®y S8 Nl t_ 99'168M [egricang | <% 2|S 53 Q| > Zy(8
= ~ =\ - x
| o ‘o 3s SO m..m\(\%\ o LVHdSY =] “4lo 23 M g5 |-
o eziicano3oN® 2 gpoud | . e | (™ = 3.;38|85 = |28
= 0 nowv© 89'158M9 05°IS8 , | Bol|y sLissx ted | | 2 2
_ S 10 > = = Mo ! m $ dm .
. S 101 (eig'd ‘e21)| ¥ LO7 = IE N RER| 2 R &3
A x go0lse . ||ssaw03 % ssaweon 2 >l Nn82 Vtmw.
02 e LL°058 x £1°168 ~ . Wl v $ .
_ o x 02°168 . ¥04 LN3N3SV3 SZ| . s >3 A F,1'6€ HOH
5|2 _ ¥£°168 x I£'1S8N9 75 IS8 e o! & Z3F ad -
3 | 6L0s8 W . ONVHYIAO ONIQTING _ @ I IS8ny| & o _ FOLL Mol
| Qi ecgse 65 0 oot TVIOYININOD 2 TR D | o ~— | MM |2 jorogg sihoEH 3m
S ™ & *® 65050 ‘T-0 :Q3NOZ | & o = A ———-10d Anun
| S 5 9¥'058 x1S0d D — ~ - 5 % g \
QUVN9 D, ZTTeo0] - . N g 5 | —
T \ x [
. S/ /8 & > TONSD 16°0G8 : - 31— 1 &
| NOLLOZS ONG .21 1 &/ S s (dAL) 00'ice vgoceno [ @ 2 ~ 3 S
o Ld [ K o 00 -
Moy  TS¥B|ANI "3 "ONOD .ZI N / ) 7 %, \oa% P, Mmoo | (oz1'd ‘29817 Bllg | X @
¥ “ N & /(% 40 . . & | ce#
Z9'¥¥8' ANI & Sy o4 N L ® &Vcnam_m_%w G330 ALNVHYVM :30¥NOS) _ e | 7 F4yZ
© : ¢ 0
o ,..% G 92158 44 P %% %. ONaINg NIVELLAVHONOS G191 / &7 3 @ [ _LHOGH 3uM
i ly ® & ¥AIN ORUWOTNE P NS e.&v TIOOSIIQ ¥ NIUVM | 5fa : 2 F10d ALALN
@ 7 (3T oN )| AW/k 9_2 TIOOSRIA “d SIHVF & m 8 0692 s (e SLINM dIHSNMOL NIHLIM
44 © o) ‘L4 ‘DS £28°C 30N34 NowI ) © ¢ 33
& < QOOM N P 7 { x SHs cg'os8, | ° > 010-202—-02—20-20—€€
. X LTVHdSY 7 (| & oNaiing doom # YorE™~~__ % ® L£°058 a | X% - S x YON @I T304vd
Vd 40 3 21T E_._om__m._ m‘ zw_ﬁx“._ gzieg S 2 2 cz# @
84N0 40 YoV : 0. =3NO ° ‘34 ! 06°068 o S © - ¢ 10
69'Z€8 ANI “3S "ONOD ,9€ 3 L UWQ > /ﬁwz_._oémozu @ e S®Ks H ..z”_”.s&z%_%%uwwm_um_ .5<_n_.. NS u&&w%.%mz . m > S o R
69°2€8 ANI ‘MN .OZWN ..0n 9, Q & m .m W “ sd AV N3AIN ANVYO ‘3 MATN* Q hw-.\ Vv P> . m m OO& 0 m Omw\ ° A (0] uO<n_ ._‘_‘ 43411 v
YI'E¥8 ANI "3S OAd .9 s 3~ ; . olvd ~7; ; 3 R SINOH ¥3AIY ¥Va30
HN AMVLINYS < Y " . e N o | s0Z58 44 SN @ g i z ° | Ir'ev8
o - . 0 €ao S,
co'w8 AN ‘35 ON0D 1z o W lbs £ N Bl N 03 "NVS | AN 0 N /S x| Dy, 20 3, 22 X ocord ) $12 | orerane | JVIO¥INNOD
£6°L¥8 ANI 'MN "ONOD' ¥ \ . Y </ sa— &, < Y 20,007 X3 /k "o, ool vt x - ® . Z-0 :Q3aNOZ
£c'8¥8 WY 4 $Bp My 203 A VA N ) 2 a3 Moy, "043) 28 ® 3 Z6'6v80L
HA WeOLS ® Y No3"® g o9 £ * N % e 007 N N 201 @ 3 d
o gl R D) #1068 Ny 5 MOONW . logs ST . _ \ *
3dLS 3NV LY, P < 5 N [8%605SS '00 "NVS— \\ SS3:93 ¥ 0v0 & ] ¥eee L9°S¥8 3did/L
ALIHM @3HSVa g N9 &, 2 S 6/ . L . phiy && ol -~ pe MS—="N 10 .21
(62r'd ‘1z = & N 089 YA Lvndsy Ve 33 8'8v8 NI
6oy, ® ¥0Ll'd '£0£Z7) : WO _— 80°6¥8 NIN @ { TEM ® A
< S o LAY 0% 2o I S8oe 3 11d T1am & ? —
3dILS INVT ow: ww,\g ® 28 oce 2 ® Q&
MOTI3A 318n0a m]l ¢ x =
ocovano erem— 3|18 oz ® 6va| \ M ™
- 3\
66'8¥80L ( _ 69°Z¥8 ANI "3S "ONOD .#2
'8¥80. oo = S 6L°Z¥8 ANI "MN ONOD ,¥C
> . 60°¥¥8 ANI 'MN OAd .Z|
A “erival 3 W 65°¥88 ANI '3S OAd .9
. : & >l B : 65°8¥8 NI
2°S¥8 ANI OAd .9 Ay m + -~ > HN WNYO1S
¥¥'S¥8 ANI 'S OAd ¥ < N ‘2
L N A IR g Z2'Z¥8 ANI "3S "ONOD .¥2
NISVE HoLyo— % o8 S 79°Z¥8 ANI 'MN "ONOD ,¥Z
O\ gz# g S ] 3 £8°T¥8 ANI 'S "ONOD 81
: -8 x ¢ x Zr'Lve NN
094 \X o1 | 8 00'058 HN WNOLS
# @ 18°£€8 ANI ‘N AVTO .8
B 99°,€8 ANI 'S AVTD ,8
] - 9e°L¥8 NIY
e % HN ANVLINVS
N @ \
= Sla
Vom 3 m 08°L¥8 NI
N HN WNOLS
8¢9 B /
A =P
....VW [P .e vnm?
«  flgg Za 0 8L°9¥8 WY
Pow s © %% isva HoLv
=
S
~
o?.ﬁ%

(1334) S9'¢68 :NOWLYATTI

‘ALd3d0dd 103rgNS 40 ¥3INJOO LSIMHLNOS

3JHL LV ‘INNIAY NMVA 40 3AIS LSV3I IHL ONOTV Q3ALVIO]
ONIFE 310d ALMILN NI 3IL HON3E ‘MYVWHON3E A¥VHOdWIL (2

(1334) ¢£°6¥8 :NOLLVATTI

‘ALY3d0dd 103rdNS 40 ¥3INYOO LSIMHLYON JHL LV

‘(e¥—N) 3AV ¥3AI ANVYO "3 40 3AIS HLNOS JHL ONOTY QALVOOT
ONIFE T10d ALMILN NI JIL HONIE ‘MUVAHONIE A¥VHOdNAL (L

(L1334) £8°G06 :NOILYAITI ‘NVOIHOIN ‘TIVANOWIA ‘(LL0LWV) WALSAS
(NOLLYLS 3IONIYIJIY ONLLYYIJO ATISNONNILNOD) ‘S°¥'0D
(W3LSAS ONINOILISOd Tv¥E019) 'S'd'D NVOIHOIN NOLNVLS

WNLYQ 8861 "A'A'V'N

SHHIVINHON3S

8861 ‘A'A'V'N
£¢°6¥8 NOILVYAT13

310d ALMILN NI 3L HON38

| # MHVINHON34

=

Ay W,
Yy
ww&wev&w/

cL'9v8 NI
NISVE8 HOLVO




- “Bip noA 310}9q __NU R
F No MO]3I(] Sieum mouy S NVid LN3IINdOT3A3A 31IS| |

JOVIANVA dIOAY OL AYVSS3OIN
39 AVIN SV S3ILITILN Y3HLO ANV Z
ANNOYOHIANN 40 NOILYOOT ANV

3dAL IHL OL SV NOILYNINYTL3A
NMO SIH ONIMYIN 404 "SININIHINOIY TYNOILIAAY HO4 TVNNYIN LOIrOdd OL

J79ISNOdSIY S| HO1OVHINOD FHL d343H "HINMO A9 TVAOHAAY ANV MIIATYH JO4 LINGNS ANV —_— “
“JAISNTIONI 1TV €O ILVHNIOOY 39 SNOILIANOD 103rodd d3131dIN0J 40 AIALNS LIS FAINOHd

Y3IGNNN L33HS

dMIN

™~3IEANN 103rodd

OL d331INVHVND 1ON SI S3ILIILN OL HOAIAYENS ANV d3d31S193d V 40 S3OINY3S IHL JHNO3S 1
U3HLO ANY ANNOYOHIANN 40 TIVHS HOLOVHLINOD 'L1NOISOTD LOVHLNOD OL HOIHd

NOILVYOOT ANV 3dAL ONINY3IONOD ‘310N 1VIO3dS

6L/ce/8 #AY LV

*NOISIAZY

ONIMYYA SIHL NO NOILYINHOANI
81/L0/S INOILNVD

-31va

L 107 40,095

TIVNOISS3408d N9OIS3Ad 3IHL 40 ALY3dOdd 3IHL 38V ANV 3IOIAY3S 40 SININNELSNI JHV SNOILVOIHID3dS ANV SONIMVHEA ‘SNOISTFAd — 8102 L1HSOINALOD @

TIVNOISS340dd NOIsSAd 3FHL 40 INISNOD NILLIIM d3ss3iddX3d 3IHL LNOHLIM d3ligiHOdd NOILONAOoadd3d

IT1 3NNAV NMVC 2ho¥ 6T 101

O N4 (2.£€.92.10S) "3ANIT TVRILSNANI | TVRILSNONI
A8 dINOIHD A8 NMVHa AdvYANNOg >._.w_m_n“_0m_n_ 1Sv3 3HL i | 03Nz _IIII_ _ .cmlsz

'€0/€ TV13a ¥3d ‘410N 1vIO3dS e
J1VO IAINOYHd ¢°¢O/€L TIVLIA OL1 43439 "'3ON34 NI3FHOS OVAH

'¢°C¢O/LL TIVL3A Ol d343d 'MOvY 3Mig g OL1 1371vdvd SIILNINJO13IA3A I I
31IS 404 ONINNIO349 40 LNIOd & £1Eg] M.96.25.98S I

S6°01

‘NV1d ONIAVEO
3LIS OL ¥343H ‘WALSAS TOHLNOD ¥ILVM WHOLS F1LIHONOD

@ ®

09

‘d31VOIdNI SV ONIdIFLS INIJWIAVC JAINOHEd '3dOT1S
SSOHD WNINIXVYIN %Z HLIM TIAVHL 40 NOILOFHIA NI WNINIXYIN “ - -
%S 3dO7TS "ILNOY F719I1SSTOIV A31LVYNOISIA WNNININ IAIM .

c# MHVINHONZG

'¢°¢O/S 1IVL3IA d3d NOILONYLSNOOD 3134ONOD
JAINOdd SAYVANVLS ON 4l 'SAYVANVLS NOIS3A J1V1S HO / ANV
ALID "d3d A3TIVLSNI 39 OL AVM-4O-1HOIY NI MTVM3AIS 3134ONOD

Ma€€9C. L ON

927101

€991

(@3sn LON) "'SININIFHINDIY
IYNOILIAAY HO4 NV1d ONIAVHO JLIS OL Y3434 ‘ONINIJO g94ND

400d
431730

Xvd 9€26-228 (L1LV)
OdIVD 1Sv3 2S0¢€

'SAYVANVYLS NOIS3A 3LVLS J0 / ANV
ALID "3d ONILSIX3 HOLVIN O1L AVM-4O-1HOIE NI 9dNO 31349ONOD

¢ ONIJOTS NOILISNVHL AN 94NO NMOQd T110d

O ® @ ©®

IANOHd313L s8€1-228 (21V)
20859 IHNOSSIN ‘ai13idoNIddS

€20l

‘SLINIOM LV LNVTV3S JAINOHd "ONIOVdS INJNTFOHOANITH 9 101
ININIAVH MIN ONIHOLVIN STIMOA HLOONS .9-L X ¥# HLIM
ONILSIX3 OLNI WNININIA .9 TIMOA AXOd3 ‘LNIFWIAVd FLIHONOD
ONILSIX3 OL F13HONOD M3AN 40 SNOILISNVYHL 1V 'SNOILVATTT
NOILISNVYHL LINJNIAVC ONILSIXT HOLVIN "ONIAVYd M3AN 40 SLINIT

98°Cre

4004

553493 EE€°CL

8s1 % 158 Sl

|

|

|

“

|

!

|

“

5468 13 004 HSINI: !
w065 SHT | _
W07Z€ INOY¥43H01S _
W03t “TY180d !
|

|

|

|

|

|

|

_

|

|

|

|

L 101

A ONISNV 1SV3 40 S,ANN3Q
¢'¢0/C TIV13d d3d NOILONYLSNOD 3134ONOD IVIINNOD —

JAINOHd SAYVANVLS ON 4l ‘'SAYVANVLS NOIS3d F1V1S T-0 ‘A3NOZ
HO / ANV ALIO ¥3d A3TTVLSNI 39 O1 NOddV IAIHA F1FHONOD

U NSUOD - }DIMYDJY

WIS

MOIHG/aN3d -3dAL ONIaTING
1S 200, =20k X ub-

Sped oiny AjlieY,0

'SININFHINOIY

TYNOILIAAY HO4 NV1d ALITILN 3LIS OL ¥343d (ITINATHIOS MHOM
40 3d0OS OL ¥343¥) AITIVLSNI ANV AIHSINYNS ¥INMO NOIS
‘NOILONYLSNOD ANV IdAL ¥OL L'LOS 1IFHS OL ¥343Y ‘NOIS LIS

103rodd

(SLVOD 2) MOTIIA - LNIVd
ONIMYYIN AVMHODIH ONISN NMOHS SV ONIdIYLS INIJWIAAYC JAIM ¥

‘NOILONYLSNOD ANV
IdAL ¥O4 NV1d ALITILN TLIS OL H343Y "ONILHOIT LOT ONIMYVd

YTl

“Hvg3y v# ONOT.9-.1(2) HLIM ONIAVd OL
A3YOHIONY (ONOT.0-9 X H .S X M .8) ¥D019 ¥3dINNG FLIHONOD

"€0/1L 0L ¥3434 "FYNSOTONI ISN43Y

00 @0 O O
/
/

\

‘SNOILVINO3Y ALITIAISS3OOV ~
ONINY3IAOD HLIM ATdINOD O1 d3dIND3IY ISIMEIHLO ~
SSTTINN HO10 ONIdIFLS HOLVIN OL SONIMEVIN LNFWIAV ~~
3AINOYd "SNOILOIHIA TTV NI WNINIXYIN %2 IdO1S OL (LNVITdINOD ~~
vav) 31SIV SSI0OV HLIM 30VdS ONIMHEVd 319ISSIOOV

/ A S 00 D
‘Q3103108d 38 OL SITHL ONILSIXT Y [ 2 N AYS L 00s=0r@Ese ] 00742
I 0 20LD

N
”_

_ SINOH YN dvVaD
|

VIDY3INNOD
‘T-0 ‘@INOZ

'¢’¢O/01 11V13d d3d NOILONYLSNOD 3134ONOD
JdINOYd SAYVANVLS ON dI ‘'SAYdVANVLS NOIS3A FLVLS HO / ANV
ALID d3d A3TIVLSNI 39 OL dAVY 9dNO 3134ONOD J191SSTOIV

NVOIHOIN ‘ONISNV1 1SVv3

‘SAV HIAIH ANVHD "3 €022
JHOLS S1HVd OLNV AT11340 MaN | aaa3M " Appng

NOILONYLSNOO 3ON34 M3N - D<K —

'2°20/6 1IVL3A OL1 ¥343H 'FOV4HNS ONINYVM 3191L0313a

PO ©

"2°20/8 1IVL3A OL ¥343H ‘NOIS ONIMYVC F19ISSIOOV

NOILYOOT 370d LHOIT M3aN

"d313NIH3d ONIATING OL LN3OVrayv Sadv1108 40 LNOAVT
H0O4 SONIMYHEA TVHNLONYLS OL Y3439 "AYLNT INO¥S 1V (8) ANV
*J00d 1HOI1Fd4 AVIHYIAO TVYNOILD3S 1V (2) 'YLV HIANIVINOD

3asN43Yd 1v (2) 3AINO¥d 220/ 1IVLId 01 ¥343Y ‘adv1104d 1331S 9078 ONIAVA JLIUONOD MAN

NVld LNIINdOT3AA3AA AlIS

'¢’¢0/91IvL3a
OL1 ¥343Y ‘ONIddIY¥LS INFWIAVC TOGNAS DNIMEVC 319ISSIOIV

‘a3diNOYd Sl ONIAVC F1F-HONOD 41 ONIAVA HLIM JIHLITONOW
d3dN0Od 39 AVIA ONIANVT 'SONIMVYHA TVANLONYLS ANV
2'20/S TIV13A OL ¥343¥ "ONIANY1HO0Ad YO MIVMIAIS ILIHONOD

NOILVOO1 NOIS 310d MaN "Ilmuul."

"d313NI-E3d ONIATING OL LIN3OVIray SINIOr NOISNVYdX3
ANV TOHLINOD 40 LNOAVT 04 SONIMYHA TVANLONYLS
0Ll ¥3434 '2°20/7 TIVLIA OL ¥343Y 'g94ND MIVMIAIS ILIHONOD

ONIAVd 40 VIHV SRR

W3ALSAS
WHO1S LOdn

Noyl 13s NIVHA ALNNOD

\\|>O_O valo

"2°20/€ TIVL3A OL ¥343 ‘g4ND ILIHONOD

. . J134ONOD 40 VIdV
'¢°¢O/C MVL3IA OL ¥343d v3dV 3SN43d ANV S3INVT 3dIH

‘SNOYdY JAIYA ‘'SYIAYY IAINA LV (ALNA AAVIH) ONIAVA FLIHONOD

S30I1440 31vdOddOO

Slkle] QLI /AlioH ®)

'¢’¢O/L Tivl3a ol
d343Y ‘SYIHY ONIMHVd LV (ALNA AYVANVYLS) ONIAVL 3LIHONOD

0 QLY B OO

NOILONYLSNOD ONIAT1INgG M3N

NOSH3llvd HLNOS €€2

NSNEDEN
STOAINAS SNOILIANOD ONILSIX3 04 AIALNS OL d343d ‘310N

IANOHd33L ¥292-298 (Z1LV)
20859 IHNOSSIN ‘a13idoNIddS

S3LON A3

AN3937 STOGINAS

'2°2J/21 1IV13d OL1 Y3434 "1d3IONOD
1NOAVT INJNAOT3AIA TVHINIO M1VMIAIS LNOH4 ONIATING HOA @

MIOM FHL HLIM ONIA3300dd

O1 HOIdd FAILVINISIHdTH S;.HINMO AJILON OL HOLOVHINOD
‘A3Y¥3A0ISIA SI LOITANOD 41 'NMOHS NOILVOOTNOIS FLIS HLIM
1OI74ANOD LON Od SAILITILN ANV ‘ONIdVOSANYT 'S310d LHOIT

.ouz_jom_ou%ﬂzuz:Emz_w_o n_Osz_._.<OO._>n__m_m_>o._.w_o._.o<m_._.zoo.zO_._.<._._<._.wz_O._.w_O_m_n_ ” ..
SNOILVOI4I03dS ‘SNV1d ¥3HIO TIV @ ¢ :d3dINO¥d S3DVdS O'H

d04_ALMIGISNOJSAY ‘Q3LVOLINIHLNY : ~
34V VAS SIHL ONI¥V3E SIT3HS "H3LINIFGId ONIATING OL LNIOVIrav SHTVMIAAIS 40 LNOAVT ANV £¢ d3QINOYd S3IvVdS

SNOISNIWIA ONIATING ¥O4 SONIMYHA TVENLONYLS OL ¥I43Y @ 7€ = (uononpai Bunjred epAlg)¢ - L€ :a34IND3Y S30VdS ~

0C X .01 ‘37IS 30VdS ~
"SONIMYNA (XVIN) V49 14 'OS 000°} ¥3d 'dS G'S

INIWAOTIAIA 3LV TLIS ¥IHLO HLIM YHOM ILYNIAHOOD @ (NIW) V49 14 "OS 000°L 83d "dS S ININNO4 SNSRIV
"Q3LON ISIMYIHLO SSTINN AHVNINNS DNIMEVYd
ONIdIMLS 40 INITHILNID HO ‘INIT ALYIJONd ‘INITHIALLND 98ND L# MYVINHONIG
“YIYM3AIS ‘NOILYANNOS JLIYONOD 40 I0V4 OL SNOISNIWIA JLIS a ‘1408 0LVl vINY ININIAY
'ISd 000 39 OL ILIYONOD ILIS NO (A3AANS ¥34TY) V34V ALd3d0dd

71V 'SINIWIHINOTY TYNOILLIAQY YO TYANVIN 103r0odd OL ¥343Y @ (LOIYLSIa ALINNWINOD) 2-0 ‘NOILVYOIHISSVTO
ONINOZ

S3LON TVAINTO 300D ONINOZ ~~



AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH TIE IN UTILITY POLE ELEVATION 849.33 N.A.V.D. 1988

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH TIE IN UTILITY POLE ELEVATION 853.65 N.A.V.D. 1988

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR RIVER HOMES ( LIBER 11, PAGE 30 )

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. 22' OF LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 60' OF LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR RIVER HOMES ( LIBER 11, PAGE 30 )

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERVISOR'S PLAT NO. 6 ( L. 11, P. 21 )

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: I,

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: I,

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C-2,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: C-2,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4942 DAWN AVENUE, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENNY'S OF EAST LANSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR RIVER HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. 60' OF LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET PK NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BSL & LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BSL & LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LSB

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BSL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C  COPYRIGHT 2018 - DESIGNS, DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE AND ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL.  REPRODUCTION PROHIBITED WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE DESIGN PROFESSIONAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS BEARING THIS SEAL ARE AUTHENTICATED, RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL OTHER PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS OR INSTRUMENTS ARE DISCLAIMED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:


- | o] 602-01L-GM |s8zoldssi)
sovimomemalrezes ) | NVId SONVIHVA AVMIAIEG

N H3llvd H1N €ge 79689-01029 #3d ‘IAVHOUVH L NOYVY Q26209 #Y0O NOSHIANY b
oS oS 1722-998 (Z1) INOH 20859 I4NOSSIW ‘AT13IONINAS *ANVIAOOM "M S70Z

$301440 31vHOdHOD NVSDIHDIN ‘ONISNV1 1Sv3a ONITTIHA - STIHOLYHOAY T - SHOAIAHNS - SYIANIONI
SLE GAAY AilEYR) HANL ONVHD 3 c0z2 ¥ "ﬁg'éggaﬁ%w |

08/15/19

FHOLS S1dvd OLNV AT11134.0 M3N
:103roud

PJE
]

1-\

CEDAR RIVER h-'l';xls-r
(e 1. PAZ SR\ E

T3

= 60'

DRIVEWAY VARIANCE PLAN

SCALE: 1"




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Ronald J. Styka Supervisor uESiGAES Phil Deschaine Trustee

Brett Dreyfus Clerk M E R I D I A N % Patricia Herring Jackson Trustee
(@]

Dan Opsommer Trustee

Julie Brixie Treasurer TOWNSH I Pa¥ /
Frank L. Walsh Manager \\_//\ﬁ Kathy Ann Sundland Trustee

December 13,2018

Lesley Guillot

Buddy Webb and Company
3057 E. Cairo

Springfield, MO 65802

RE:

Site Plan Review #18-08
2703 Grand River Avenue

Dear Ms. Guillot,

Staff has reviewed the submitted site plan for the proposed 7,402 square foot O'Reilly Auto Parts store at 2703
Grand River Avenue. Conditional site plan approval was granted on November 15, 2018, subject to revisions
as required by the Director of Community Planning and Development. Conditional site plan approval is valid
for a period of 30 days, in which time the applicant must submit a revised site plan. A revised site plan was not
submitted, therefore the conditional approval expired and shall be void. As conditional approval was not met,
final site plan review approval is hereby denied based on the following reasons:

Access

a. Based on the standards in the Grand River Avenue Corridor Access Management Overlay District (Section
86-441), access to the site from Dawn Avenue is required. A Grand River Avenue driveway is not
permitted for the following reasons:

I

il.

iii.

Access points must have a minimum of 350 feet of spacing provided from other access points along
the same side of the street, measured centerline to centerline. As proposed, the driveway on Grand
River Avenue is not 350 feet from the existing driveway located to the east (Section 86-441(e)(6)).

Access points shall be aligned with driveways on the opposite side of the street or offset 630 feet,
measured centerline to centerline. The Director of Community Planning and Development may
reduce this to not less than 150 feet where the offsets are aligned to not create left-turn conflicts
(Section 86-441(e)(8)). As proposed, the driveway on Grand River Avenue does not align with the
opposing driveway on the north side of Grand River Avenue, and does not meet the required 630
foot offset. To site a driveway anywhere along the property’s Grand River Avenue frontage would
not meet a minimum 150 foot offset.

The minimum required driveway spacing from the intersection of Grand River Avenue and Dawn
Avenue is 200 feet (Section 86-441(e)(9)). As proposed, the driveway on Grand River Avenue is
not 200 feet from the intersection of Grand River Avenue and Dawn Avenue.

b. The Ingham County Road Department stated it would approve maintaining the existing driveway to the
subject site on Dawn Avenue at its present location.



Site Plan Review #18-08 (Buddy Webb and Company)
2703 Grand River Avenue
Page 2

The future access drive connection to the adjacent property to the east of the subject site must have a
minimum width of 20 feet (Section 86-441(e)(12)(d)). As proposed, the service drive is 17.90 feet in
width.

An easement for the service drive connection to the adjacent property east of the subject site was not
provided (Section 86-441(e)(12)(b)).

Parking

a.

172]
el
(gl
D

|

i

The required number of parking spaces is 37 (minimum) to 41 (maximum) and 29 parking spaces are
proposed (Section 86-755).

The plan was not revised to label the loading/unloading space on Sheet C2.1 (Section 86-721).

The plan was not revised to update the parking calculation summary on Sheet C2.1, based on the standards
in Section 86-755.

A waiver from the 250 foot minimum lot width requirement for corner lots located on an Arterial street
was not requested (Section 86-402(e)).

The pervious/impervious plan was not revised to remove the 197 square foot landscape island from being
counted as pervious surface (Section 86-402(17)(c)).

The plans were not revised to address the comments from the Township Chief Engineer as outlined in his
review letter dated September 24, 2018 (attached).

Landscaping

a.

Seven interior canopy trees are required for the parking area and three trees are proposed (Section 86-
758(1)(c)).

No landscaped area shall have a dimension less than 10 feet nor an area less than 200 square feet (Section
86-758(b)(2)). Several areas do not meet this standard.

The landscape plan was not revised to list the correct landscape requirements, based on the standards for
street trees in Section 86-473, buffers in Section 86-756(11) and Section 86-756(14), and landscaping in
Section 86-758.

The landscape plan was not updated to include two additional species of shrubs, to be intermixed
throughout the landscape screen along the parking area, as well as be intermixed throughout the building
perimeter landscaping.

The landscape plan was not revised to add a landscape island to the east of the six parking spaces at the

northwest corner of the site.
W
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Site Plan Review #18-08 (Buddy Webb and Company)
2703 Grand River Avenue
Page 3

Outdoor Lighting

a. The photometric plan was not revised to meet the footcandle requirements based on the standards in
Section 38-380(c). Footcandles at the property line shall not exceed one when abutting nonresidential

property.

Decisions by the Director of Community Planning and Development regarding site plan denial may be
appealed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. Such an appeal must be made within ten (10) days of the date of staff
action and must be in accordance with Section 86-186 of the Township Code of Ordinances.

If you have any questions, please contact Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner at (517) 853-4580 or email at
quagliata@meridian.mi.us.

Sincerely,

Y/

Mark Kieselbach
Director of Community Planning and Development

Attachment
1. Review letter from the Township Chief Engineer, dated September 24, 2018.

cc: John Heckaman, Chief Building Inspector

Younes Ishraidi, Chief Engineer
Tavis Millerov, Fire Inspector

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR)\CASE_MGMT\2018 SPR\SPR 18-08 (O'Reilly)\SPR 18-08 final site plan
review denial letter.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



10/4/2019 Charter Township of Meridian

Charter Township of Meridian
Friday, October 4, 2019

Chapter 86. Zoning
ARTICLE IV. District Regulations
DIVISION 4. Other Districts

§ 86-441. Grand River Avenue (M-43) Corridor Access Management
Overlay District.

[Ord. No. 2004-06, 9-5-2004]

(a) Findings. A primary function of Grand River Avenue (M-43) is to_move traffic through Meridian Township
and to points b%yond. As the primary arterial road for Meridian Township and many. of the communities
along the corridor, a hl%h percentage of the traffic has an origin and or destination in the local
communities, Thus, Grand River Avenue (M-43) also has a secondary, but important, function to provide
access to adjacent and nearby land uses.

Continued development along the Grand River Avenue M-43 corridor will increase traffic volumes and
introduce additional conflict points. which will further erode traffic oP_eratlQns and increase potential for
crashes. Numerous published studies and reports document the relationship between systems and traffic
operations and safety. Those reports and experiences of other communities demonstrate standards on
the number and placement of access points (driveways and side street intersections) that can preserve
the capacity of the roadway and reduce the potential for crashes. The standards hérein are based on
recommendations published by various nafional and Michigan agencies that were refined during
preparation of the M-43/52 Corridor Access Management Plan, dated July 2003.

The Charter Township of Meridian finds that special comprehensive zoning standards are needed along
the Grand River Avenue (M-43) corridor based upon the following findings:

(1) The combination of roadway design, traffic speeds, current and projected traffic volumes, traffic
crashes and other characteristics necessitate special access standards.

(2) Studies b}/] transportation organizations in Michigan and natjonally have found a direct correlation
between the number of acceSs points and the number of crashes.

(3) The standards are based upon considerable_research and recommendations contained within the
Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Access Management Handbook.

(4) Preservation of roadway capacity throuPh access man%gement protects the substantial public
wvgﬁ%rggrewgm the roadway system-and helps avoid the need for costly reconstruction, which disrupts
usi .

(b) Purpose. The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDQT) has jurisdiction within the highvyar¥'s right-
of-way, while the Charter Township of Meridian has authority for land use and site plan decisions wijthin
individual lots or parcels along the highway. The access management _standards were created to help
ensure a collaborative F;{)_rocess between the MDOT and the Charter Township of Meridian on_access
decisions along Grand River Avenue (M-43) to implement the recommendations of the "M-43/52 Corridor
Access Management Plan" dated July 2003 and other adopted Charter Township of Meridian plans.

Among the specific purposes of this corridor access management overlay district are to:

(1) Preserve the capacity of Grand River Avenue QM-43) by limiting_and controlling the number, location
and design of access points and requiring, alternate means Of access through shared driveways,
service drives, and access off cross streets’in certain locations.

(2) Encourage efficient flow of traffic by minimizing the disruption and conflicts between through traffic
and turning movements.

(3) Improve safety and reduce the potential for crashes.

(4) Avoid the proliferation of unnecessar¥ curb cuts and driveways, and eliminate or reconfigure existing
access points that do not conform to the standards herein, when the opportunities arise.

(5) I2n68l?(’ement the recommendations of the M-43/52 Corridor Access Management Plan, dated July

(6) Require longer frontages or wider minimum lot widths than required in other zoning districts to help
achieve access management spacing standards.

(7) Require coordinated access among adjacent lands where possible.

(8) Require demonstration that resultant lots or Parcels are accessible through compliance with the
access standards herein prior to approval of any land divisions to ensure safe accessibility as
required by the Land Division Act.

(9) Address situations where exjsting development within the corridor area does not conform to the
standards of this overlay district.

https://www.ecode360.com/print/ ME3541?guid=28783112 117


https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783114#28783114
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783115#28783115
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783116#28783116
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783117#28783117
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783113#28783113
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783119#28783119
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783120#28783120
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783121#28783121
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783122#28783122
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783123#28783123
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783124#28783124
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783125#28783125
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783126#28783126
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783127#28783127
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783128#28783128
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783118#28783118

10/4/2019 Charter Township of Meridian

(10) Identifé additional submittal information and review procedures required for lots or parcels that front
along Grand River Avenue (M-43).

(11) {Av]cc)fid ftlhe need for unnecessary and costly reconstruction, which disrupts business operations and
raffic flow.

(12) Ensure efficient access by emergency and public transportation vehicles.

(13) Improve safety for pedestrians and other nonmotorized travelers through reducing the number of
conflict points at access crossings.

(14) Establish uniform standards to ensure fair and equal application.

(15) Provide landowners with reasonable access, though the access may be restricted to a shared
driveway or service drive or via a side street, or the number and location of access may not be the
arrangement most desired by the landowner or applicant.

(16) Promate a more coordinated_development review process for the Charter Township of Meridian with
EPC?R'\CA:I)Chlgan Department of Transportation (MDOT) and the Ingham County Road Commission

(c) Applicability. The standards of this section shall apply. to all lots and ?arcela with frontage along Gran
River Avenue (M-43) and alon1g intersecting roads within 350 feet of the Grand River Avenue (M-43
right-of-way (see Figure 86-441.1). The standards herein app_I%/ in addition to, and simultaneously with,
the other applicable Tegulations of the zoning ordinance. Permitted and special land uses on these lands
shall be as regulated in the applicable zoning district (as designated on the Zoning Map), and shall meet
e

the following additional provisions:

M-43/52 Corridor Overlay Zome
Applicability

Figure 86-441.1
(1) The number of access points is the fewest needed to allow motorists reasonable access to the site.

(2) Access spacing from intersections and other driveways shall meet the Grand River Avenue (M-43)
access management standards and MDOT's guidelines.

(3) Provision has been made to share access with adjacent uses, either now or in the future, including
any necessary written shared_access _and maintenance agreements to_be recorded with the county
spemfymg that the Charter Township of Meridian approval is required for any change to the
easement.

(4) No building or structure. nor the enlargement of any building or structure, shall be erected unless the
Grand River Avenue (M-43) access management fegulations are met and maintained in connection
with such building, structure, or enlargement.

(5) All subdivisions and condominium projects shall comply with the access spacinﬁ standards as herein
demonstrated. Compliance with this section shall be réquired to demonstrate that a lot is accessible
as required under the Land Division Act (Act 288 of 1967, as amended).

(6) Any change in use that requires a site plan review per § 86-151, the_applicant shall identi(fj/ the
extent of ‘compliance with the standards herein and shall submit information to the MDOT to
determine if a new access permit is required.

(7) Eor building or_parking lot exRansions, or changes in use or pr%peﬂ¥, the Director, of Community
Planning and Development shall determine the” extent of upgrades 10 bring the site into_greater
compliance with the access standards. In making a decision, the, Director of Community Planning
and Development shall consider the ex?tlng and projected traffic condlt_lons,_anY sight distance
limitations, site toPogra hy or natural feafures, impacts on internal site circulation, and any
recommendations from the’MDOT. Required improvements may include removal or rearrangemerit
or redesign of site access points.

(8) The standards herein were_developed collaboratively between the Charter Township of Meridian,
i T ar|1d Ingham County Road Commission. Where conflict occurs, the more restrictive standards
shall apply.

(d) Additional submittal information. In addition to the submittal information required for a special use_permit
in § 86-124 and site plan review in § 86-15(4), the_following information shall be Frowded with an
application for S|te_PIan review or special use permit. The information listed in items (1)—(4
also be required with any request for a land division, subdivision plat or site condominium.

(1) Existing access_points. Existing access points within 500 feet on both sides of the Grand River
Avenue (M-43) frontage, and along both ‘'sides of any adjoining roads, shall be shown on the site
plan, aerial photographs, plat or sufvey.

(2) The applicant_shall submit evidence indicating that the applicable Charter Township of Meridian's,
ICRC or MDOT sight distance requirements are met.

) below shall

https://www.ecode360.com/print/ ME3541?guid=28783112 2/7


https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783128#28783128
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783129#28783129
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783130#28783130
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783131#28783131
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783132#28783132
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783133#28783133
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783134#28783134
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783136#28783136
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783137#28783137
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783138#28783138
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783139#28783139
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783140#28783140
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783141#28783141
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783142#28783142
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783143#28783143
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783135#28783135
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783145#28783145
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783146#28783146
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783147#28783147
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28783144#28783144
https://www.ecode360.com/attachment/ME3541/ME3541-086%20Fig%2086-441.1%20Applicability.tif.png
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28781255#28781255
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28781120#28781120
https://www.ecode360.com/print/28781261#28781261

o 006b €687
£06¥
5597 0T6¥
1LLT N
5597
S
< L16Y 096v

6¥92 >

€797 Zr6y =

<

1992 @

T 10L2
,IIIIIII/IIIL LTLT | TELT

celLe

9¢€Lt

1€0S

06.¢ 8LL7

¥8L¢C

mmomi L19¢ 7BN©N7 §5€9¢ Amwomi mmomi moomi 129¢ _ €89¢ 7 ¢v0Ss _ A $8/7



	October 9 2019 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Agenda
	September 18 2019 ZBA Draft Minutes
	1 Newman
	ZBA 19-10-09 location map
	VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT-review criteria only
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 staff report.zba1
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 variance application
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 response to review criteria
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 survey 4-25-13
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 site plan 4-25-13
	ZBA 19-10-09-1 location map
	ZBA 19-10-09-2 staff report.zba1
	ZBA 19-10-09-2 variance application
	response to review criteria ltr 1
	response to review criteria ltr 2
	response to review criteria ltr 3
	response to review criteria ltr 4
	ZBA 19-10-09-2 survey 5-1-14
	ZBA 19-10-09-2 site plan 8-22-19
	Sheets and Views
	C2.1 - SITE DEVELOPMENT


	ZBA 19-10-09-2 driveway variance plan 8-28-19
	SPR 18-08 final site plan review denial letter
	ZBA 19-10-09-2 location map



